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VISION

Gerresheimer will become the leading global partner for enabling solutions that

improve health and well-being.

GERRESHEIMER

GOALS FOR 2015

GLOBAL MARKET LEADERSHIP IN
OUR MARKETS

Clear focus on pharma and healthcare
Push ahead with international expansion
Augment capacity for future growth

Continue implementing machine strategy
for more effective production

Weigh potential acquisitions

PROFITABLE AND ...

Adjusted EBITDA at constant exchange rates
EUR 255m-EUR 265m

Boost cash flow

Improve production efficiency, reduce
capital intensity

Higher EPS
Shareholders participate in success:

Dividend of 20%-30% of adjusted
net income

... SUSTAINED GROWTH

1%-3% revenue growth (organic);
corresponds to revenue of approx.
EUR 1,300m-EUR 1,330m

Capex between 9% and 10% of revenue
at constant exchange rates

Launch new products, tap new regions
and customers

Verifiably sustainable operations

Employee training and development

2015 RESULTS

GLOBAL MARKET LEADERSHIP IN
OUR MARKETS

\d Acquisition of Centor:
US market leader for plastic
packaging for oral prescription
medication
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Expansion of medical plastic systems
plants in the USA and the
Czech Republic
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@ Expansion and improvement of our
moulded glass plant in the USA
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Construction of a new tubular glass
converting plant in India
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é Pursuit of global machine strategy:
Standardization of tubular glass
converting machines in the USA
and Mexico
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PROFITABLE AND ...

rates increased to EUR 262.4m.
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Operating cash flow significantly
up by some 70% to EUR 177.0m
(2014: EUR 103.6m)
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mSale of glass tubing business to Corning,
capital intensity reduced

DONE
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UAdjusted earnings per share increased
significantly by 18.0% to EUR 3.41
(2014: EUR 2.89)

@Dividend increase by 13% to
EUR 0.85 per share (25% payout ratio)
proposed
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... SUSTAINED GROWTH

U/G.B% revenue growth to
EUR 1,377.2m; organic revenue
growth of 1.5%
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dCapex program fully completed,
volume equivalent to some 9.0% of
revenue at constant exchange rates
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dclosure of our moulded glass plant in
Millville, USA
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wAchieving our climate protection
targets gets us top place in Carbon
Disclosure Project
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m Strong new financing structure on
favorable terms
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OVERALL ASSESSMENT FOR 2015

SUCLESSFUL FINANGAL YEAR 2015
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Gerresheimer is a leading global partner to the pharma and healthcare industry. With
our specialty glass and plastic products, we contribute to health and well-being. We operate
worldwide and, with some 11,000 employees, manufacture our products in local markets
close to our customers. With more than 40 plants in Europe, North America, South America
and Asia, we generate revenues of approximately EUR 1.4 billion. Our comprehensive
product portfolio includes pharmaceutical packaging and products for the safe, simple
administration of medicines: insulin pens, inhalers, prefillable syringes, injection vials,
ampoules, bottles and containers for liquid and solid medicines with closure and safety
systems, as well as packaging for the cosmetics industry.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS AND BUSINESS PARTNERS,
LADIES AND GENTLEMEN,

The year 2015 was not only a successful, but also an important year for us. We made great strides
on our path to becoming the leading global partner for enabling solutions that improve health
and well-being. First and foremost, we successfully acquired a large, market-leading company in
the USA — Centor — in 2015. The company spearheads manufacturing of the plastic containers
used by pharmacies to package prescription medication in the United States.

This acquisition enabled us to achieve a long-standing goal — to strengthen our

position in the US market for plastic pharmaceutical packaging. We have been ”‘W@ SUCC-eSSfU//y acqu/'red

the number one in North America for many years now with our glass vials and

ampoules for packaging liquid medication administered by injection. mrge, market—/eading
With Cent A ica” b hen it to plasti o
ith Centor, we are now America’s number one when it comes to plastic company. in the USA i3

packaging for oral prescription medication as well. g
Centor=srm2Omam

As many of you know, we apply our expertise in glass and plastic to both

simple and complex packaging. Simple packaging is mainly used to store

medication, while complex solutions also enable drug dosage and administration. With Centor,
we now dominate the US market for simple pharmaceutical plastic containers and have also
gained significant ground in complex plastic packaging. We are currently expanding production
at our plant in Peachtree City in the South of the USA, where we will produce an asthma inhaler
for the North American market starting in 2016. It has also been a busy year for our glass business
in the USA: We completely renovated our.moulded glass plant in Chicago Heights in just two
months. The refurbishment, including the construction of a new furnace and modernization of
the production machinery, was completed in next to no time. We will unveil what is virtually a
new plant and all of its features to our customers at a major event in spring 2016. The machinery
at our two US plants in Morganton and Forest Grove, which produce injection vials from tubular
glass, was modernized and standardized. Other sister plants will follow in 2016, including the
plant in Kosamba, India, which is currently under construction. Our converting segment will

soon share the same production machinery — and hence identical production processes — the
world over. This guarantees the same high level of quality at all of our plants, something that is
extremely important to our global customers.

From a strategic perspective, we will continue to focus on expanding our capacities in line

with market requirements. This is the only way for us to become “better and better” — our
motto for this year’s Annual Report. For us, getting better and better also means constantly
asking ourselves what makes us different, what do we do best. That includes questioning the
status quo. Against this backdrop, another milestone in 2015 was the sale of our glass tubing
business. How did it come about? We reviewed our portfolio and agreed that the production of
glass tubes as an intermediary product is no longer a core area of our business. Our focus is on
the end products — the glass packaging that reaches patients, such as injection vials, ampoules,
cartridges and syringes. The intermediary product does not necessarily have to be manufactured
by us. In the future, we will purchase tubular glass as an intermediary product — in the same
way as we buy in granulates as the raw material for our plastic products. This gives us the time
and energy to concentrate on our strengths. It also gives us greater financial flexibility going



forward, since the production of tubular glass is extremely capital intensive. Ultimately, reducing
the number of furnaces results in fewer regular major furnace overhauls, so our capital expendi-
ture will be lower and less cyclical.

This is why | am very pleased with the successful sale of the glass tubing business — and to an
expert partner like US company Corning at that. Our joint venture with Corning, coupled with the
long-term supply contract for glass tubes, will enable us to continue playing a part in innovating
the pharmaceutical glass segment.

~“l am very pleased with the successful
~ sale of the glass tubing business.”

Revenues rose by 6.8% to EUR 1,377.2m in financial year 2015. Excluding exchange rate effects,
we recorded organic revenue growth of 1.5%, which is within our target corridor of between

1% and 3%. We also performed well in terms of earnings, with operating income — measured

as adjusted EBITDA — of EUR 277.9m. At EUR 262.4m, adjusted EBITDA, excluding exchange rate
effects and without taking into account the sale of the glass tubing business and the acquisition
of Centor, was within our target corridor of between EUR 255m and EUR 265m. Capital expendi-
ture on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets totaled 9.0% of revenues at constant
exchange rates and excluding Centor. This is at the lower end of our forecast range of between
9% and 10%. We therefore met all of our targets for financial year 2015.

The control of our Group’s finances played a critical role last year given the acquisition and sale
transactions. We firstly replaced the overall financing arrangement from 2011 with a EUR 450m
revolving credit facility in the summer. In addition, we took out a EUR 550m bridging loan to
finance the acquisition of Centor in September 2015. We repaid this in full in November 2015,
largely from the EUR 425m debt issue as well as from the proceeds generated on the sale of our
glass tubing business. Net financial debt was significantly higher as of November 30, 2015 as

a result of the transactions. Leverage amounted to 2.9 as of the balance sheet date, compared
with 1.7 in the prior year. Our goal is to reduce debt again as quickly as possible to secure an
investment grade rating in the longer term.



Our share price performance last year was highly gratifying. After a sluggish
start to the year, the share price picked up sharply through to July 2015 and
shot up by around another EUR 12.00 within a few days of announcing our
acquisition of Centor in late July — reflecting market approval of the takeover
of the highly profitable US company. Following a brief pullback, the share price
went on to make further substantial gains in the last three months of the finan-
cial year, marking an all-time high closing price of EUR 76.32 on November 17,
2015. The shares gained 66.3% over the course of financial year 2015, to close
at EUR 73.90, making them the third-best performer in the MDAX.

Based on the strong business performance, we will be joining with the Supervisory Board in
proposing to the Annual General Meeting that a dividend of EUR 0.85 per share will be distrib-
uted for financial year 2015. This is 13% higher than the dividend per share distributed in the
prior financial year and represents a dividend payout ratio of 25% of adjusted net income after
non-controlling interests.

We are excellently positioned for the years ahead and have defined clear steps to ensure our
continued success going forward. These include expanding capacities at various locations as well
as further standardizing our production technology. We already initiated some of this last year.

At the same time, we are optimistic about financial year 2016 and are forecasting revenues of
around EUR 1.5bn, plus or minus EUR 25m. This corresponds to around 9% year-on-year revenue
growth at constant exchange rates and organic revenue growth of between 4% and 5%. Adjusted
EBITDA is expected to increase to some EUR 320m (plus or minus EUR 10m) in financial year 2016.

We are once again aiming for average annual organic revenue growth of between 4% and 5%
for financial years 2016 to 2018. For the adjusted EBITDA margin, we have defined a target
value of around 22% for 2018. To achieve these targets, we will require an estimated annual
investment volume of 8% of revenues at constant exchange rates through to 2018 in order to
maximize the return on our products while also improving quality.

It is important for us to strike a balance between growth and ecological responsibility. The targets
we have set and met — notably our CO, emission targets — are also recognized by third parties.
The Carbon Disclosure Project, a global environmental initiative, acknowledged our improvements
and efforts in the past financial year with yet another improved rating.




On behalf of the entire Management Board, | would like to thank all our employees for their
outstanding work and commitment to Gerresheimer. Without their dedication, motivation and
resourcefulness, Gerresheimer would not be the company it is today. | also join with everyone on
the Management Board in thanking our business partners, our Supervisory Board members and
our works council officials for their loyal cooperation. We very much look forward to continuing
this working relationship in the future.

And | wish to express gratitude to all of our shareholders for their continued support. We are

fully committed to getting better and better on our path to becoming the leading partner to the
pharma and healthcare industry.

With kind regards,

e T

Uwe Réhrhoff
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Career

¥ Bornin 1962 B Various international management
B Degree in business administration positions
B started career at Scheidt & B Management Board member from 2003
Bachmann GmbH ¥ CEO since 2010
B Joined Gerresheimer AG in 1991 B Currently appointed to the Management
Board until 2018
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I investor Relations &
Creditor Relations

Information Technology
Internal Audit
Mergers & Acquisitions

¥ Bornin 1968

I ) Degree in business
administration

¥ started out at
Deutsche Telekom AG

¥ CFO and Chief Executive
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CFO of Demag Cranes AG

CFO of Elster Group SE

Management Board member of
Gerresheimer AG since the end of 2012
CFO since the start of 2013

Currently appointed to the
Management Board until 2019

| Key Account Management

Career

Born in 1962
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Management Board member
of Hydro Aluminium
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# Management Board member of
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¥ Currently appointed to the
Management Board until 2017
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We have a plan to become the leading global partner for enabling solutions that improve
health and well-being. How do we aim to achieve this goal? By reaffirming our commitment
to top quality each and every day. By being a reliable partner to the pharma and healthcare
industry. And by continuously improving. This goes for each one of us, whether we work at
a plant, in sales or at headquarters. And it goes for Gerresheimer as a whole.

In pursuing our strategy, we made numerous changes at Gerresheimer in the past financial
year. We significantly enhanced our position in North America with a major acquisition.
We sold parts of the Company, where it made sense to do so. We improved quality by
modernizing facilities and production machinery. We created new capacities in regions
where we intend to accelerate growth.

Over the next few pages, we would like to show you how these steps are helping us to
become better and better.



Better and better: Now also in tablet packaging in the United States.
Because Centor, the US market leader in plastic packaging for
prescription tablets, has been part of Gerresheimer since the summer.
In the United States, everyone knows the orange containers with

the white caps.

Every American has held one in their hands, while in
Europe they are familiar from US films and TV shows.
The orange, semi-transparent plastic containers with
the white caps can be found lined up in the medicine
cabinet in every American home. They are manufactured
by Centor. And now by Gerresheimer, since we acquired
Centor in the summer.

Pour-and-count is the name of the statutory system in
the United States by which pharmacists have to count
out and package up prescription tablets. Completely
different from the standard blister packaging found
in Europe. This means demand for plastic containers -
from US pharmacists is high. These containers like the ‘
tried-and-trusted classic Screw-Loc® and 1-Clic® can

be ordered directly from Centor or from a wholesaler.

Centor is the market leader for plastic packaging for

oral prescription medication. It supplies many pharmacy

chains large and small — more than 60,000 of them in

the United States alone. The trucks laden with the plas-

tic containers start out from the Centor plant in Berlin,

Ohio. While the area is familiar to many Americans as

“Amish Country,” the Centor plant contains state-of-

the-art production technology, efficient process chains —
and sophisticated logistics. The FLWWMCZS‘\L countg oul’

the tableks as stated
Gerresheimer is America’s number one when it comes in the preserpton and

to glass packaging for liquid medication administered M“ﬂ“ theny s
by injection. And, for some time, we have been looking
to strengthen our position in plastic packaging for med-
ication in the United States. Now, we have succeeded in

one stroke with the purchase of Centor. This is not just 1 TR U3 P s BP
a strategic move for the Gerresheimer Group, it is also w:;lb Contor

a rewarding one. After all, Centor is a highly profitable 7

business.




Every Amencan
s Liar with
te vials and
safery caps:

¥ Over a century of experience with

prescription medication
X One plant in Berlin (Ohio, USA),

headquarters in Perrysburg (Ohio, USA)
¥ Market leader in the USA

as well as wholesalers

¥ Most of the dispensing machines in US
pharmacies are calibrated to Centor containers

@ More on Centor:
www.centorrx.com
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USA: POUR-AND-COUNT - PRESCRIPTION MEDICATION THE PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

¥ The pour-and-count system is the standard way Plastic containers for solid prescription medication and
of selling prescription medicines in the USA and closure systems (child-resistant and senior-friendly). Suitable
Canada. for automated dispensing machines, the plastic containers
¥ Drug producers package large quantities (100 to are delivered with standardized or customized imprinted
1,000 units) of tablets and capsules in containers. caps.
¥ These containers are delivered to pharmacies by
drug wholesalers on demand. ¥ 1-Clic® plastic containers for tablets
¥ Pharmacists pour tablets or capsules from the ¥ Screw-Loc® plastic containers for tablets
containers and count out the precise quantity ¥ Recycled oval PET bottles for liquid medication
stipulated in the prescription. Or dispensing with child-resistant closure
machines do that in the pharmacy. ¥ Plastic ointment jars
¥ The tablets or capsules are then dispensed in ¥ Applicators
special plastic containers with a customer-specific X Droppers

label (in many cases, both the dispensing and
labeling process are automated). This is where the
plastic containers made by Centor come in.



Better and better can also mean focusing on your core competencies. And letting
others do what they can do better. That's the logic behind the sale of the glass
tubing business to glass specialist Corning — no more and no less.

What do we do particularly well? Manufacture pack-
aging for medication. This calls for raw materials,
intermediary products and reliable suppliers. For the
manufacture of pharmaceutical plastic containers, we
buy plastic granules as an important intermediary prod-
uct. For the manufacture of injection vials, ampoules,
syringes and cartridges, glass tubes are an important

intermediary product. For a long time, we produced PRODUCTION PROCESS
a major part of this intermediary product ourselves in up to 2015
two plants: in Vineland, USA, and in Pisa, Italy. And

also purchased another part from other suppliers, if
that was what the customer wanted.

Now, we are doing the same thing with injection vials
as we do with plastic containers. At the start of Novem-
ber, Corning took over the glass tubing business from

us — and with it, the production in Pisa and Vineland. =
We continue to do what we do best, which is manu- / \

. ) GLASS TUBES ’
+ third-party suppliers

facture high-quality pharmaceutical packaging. And we
have the glass tubes needed for this delivered. Corning
is an icon of glass manufacturing. A company that
invests so much money into materials research, is highly
innovative when it comes to glass, and manufactures
the world’s best glass for smartphone displays will
always deliver the best glass tubes for pharmaceutical
packaging. We are happy to work with such partners.
That’s also why we have gone ahead and concluded
a ten-year supply contract with Corning.

SYRINGE BARRELS AMPOULES ~ CARTRIDGES VIALS

Plus, we will have less capital tied up in production
facilities going forward. With the sale of the two
plants, we disposed of six glass furnaces. Furnaces
require regular general overhauls, and that entails
investments. Money that in future we can use for other
things. And that's not all: Together with Corning, we
want to reach the next level — in other words, produce
innovations with the next generation of injection vials
and the like. In the future, this will be handled by a
joint venture between Gerresheimer and Corning.

So the new setup makes sense. Everyone does what
they do best, and some things we do together.

n the {uture, berweshtimer will
purchase glass tubes fram Carwfeﬂ
and other Suppliers.




PRODUCTION PROCESS

from 2015
SRR T T + other suppliers
GLASS TUBES

SYRINGE BARRELS AMPOULES ~ CARTRIDGES VIALS

\ \ / /
GUSTOMER

THE GLASS SPECIALIST: CORNING

Global head office:
Headquarters in Corning (New York, USA)
Employees: Around 35,000 worldwide
Research centers: North America, Europe, Asia
Revenue: Approx. USD 10bn in 2014
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WHAT ARE GLASS TUBES?

Pharmaceutical glass tubes are a special type of glass with a
tubular shape. The raw materials are melted in an oven. The
melted glass is then shaped into a long tube and conducted
on 60-meter-long conveyor belts to the cold end of the
production line, where the tubes are cut, inspected, bundled
together and packed. The intermediary product glass tubing
comes in the form of clear and amber glass. It used to be
manufactured by Gerresheimer in two plants — in Vineland,
USA, and in Pisa, Italy. Corning took over the plants in full,
with all employees transferred to Corning. If you laid out
all of the glass tubes produced by both plants in a year
end to end, the line would stretch for 450,000 km. That's
eleven times around the earth. You can make a fair few
vials and syringes out of that.
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Better and better can also mean making new things from old. Or making more from
new things. Two examples from the USA: In the North of the USA, near Chicago, and in
the sunny southern states near Atlanta, we have been making substantial changes

and additions.

PLANT IN

A new ‘,(a}s ma«.(v(ivﬂ macling s
(iffed bj a cane i the plant

CHICAGO HEIGHTS

ILLINOIS, USA

41° 31" N, 87°38°' W

Gerresheimer Glass Inc.

TECHNICAL DETAILS

CHICAGO HEIGHTS: OFF WITH *  Top-quality
pharmaceutical
THE ROOF FOR ALL-ROUND serum bottles
IMPROVEMENTS e Type | borosilicate
. glass, clear
Regularly, it is the turn of every plant where o 1 furnace

glass is melted to have its furnace replaced

after intensive, nonstop use. But at our

moulded glass plant in Chicago Heights,

we have remodeled and converted a whole lot more. Machinery has
been replaced and new technologies installed. The team was given a
good eight weeks. A tight schedule between the American holidays of
Independence Day (July 4) and Labor Day (September 4). Not only did
we have to install a new furnace in this time, we also had to turn the
plant into a production facility of world-class caliber, compliant with
the latest environmental standards. After all, our customers expect
nothing less than the highest quality when it comes to packaging
for their vaccinations and cancer medicines. Preferably manufactured
in the USA, supplied locally and with no extended interruptions in
supply. And all while saving resources, using energy efficiently and
protecting the environment at the same time.

Sometimes, substantial improvements call for special measures. So it
was at the plant in Chicago Heights. We needed a new steel foundation
for the bigger and better furnace. So the engineers simply took off
the roof so that the crane could lift the heavy loads in and out.

3 lines
Controlled
environment at
the cold end and
packaging

The result: A brand new furnace, two of the
three glass moulding machines replaced, the
third given a general overhaul. There are
brand new compressed air systems in the
basement, the entire pipe network has been
overhauled and replaced. A process patented
by Gerresheimer for preventing particles
in the production process is making its debut. Two of our three
annealing ovens have been replaced and enlarged. All this results in
much lower energy consumption and carbon emissions per ton of
glass melted. At the cold end, the vials are then screened, measured
and checked fully automatically and with meticulous precision thanks
to state-of-the-art inspection technology. Finally, the flawless vials
are then safely packaged to perfection. Each process must dovetail
seamlessly with the next. Even if it didn‘t seem possible at the height
of the construction phase — as promised, we had the furnace heated
up on schedule, put the new production equipment into operation
and, in next to no time, were already showing customers around
what is in effect a totally new plant. They were impressed by the
“before” and “after” comparison. Just as well considering that the
major annual customer event, Gerresheimer Pharma Days, is being
held in Chicago in spring 2016, which, of course, will be followed
by a visit to the plant in Chicago Heights.
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BETTER AND BETTER - FOR US, FOR THE FDA, OR FOR PATIENTS?

Wall thickness

Neck finish 40

PEACHTREE CITY: A CLEAN ROOM TO FIGHT ASTHMA

The purpose of medication is to help people get better. In particular, medication
that is injected needs to be especially clean and free of impurities. Flawless
packaging — i.e., the injection vial — is instrumental in this regard. This is why
our customers and the US Food and Drug Administration (FDA) demand very
high quality for these vials. At our Chicago Heights plant, we manufacture
these injection vials from melted glass. What's more, we are the only provider
to do so in the USA. So when renovating the plant, we focused in particular
on producing particle-free glass packaging. All renovation and modification
work ultimately had to ensure we could meet the highest demands in terms

+20%

Furnace capacity

@ More information:
www.gerresheimer.com/news-events/newsletter

Just as the furnace and glass moulding machines are the centerpiece of the plant in
the world of glass, for plastic it is high-precision production and automated assembly

under effectively clinically clean conditions. Wherever
we manufacture insulin pens, asthma inhalers and other
products for the health of patients from a multitude of
complex plastic parts, clean-room production plays a key
role. We made good use of our time in 2015 at our plant
in Peachtree City in the south of the USA: Completing
new production buildings, installing the latest clean-
room technology, setting up the first injection-molding

“In the past year, we reached
important milestones in the expansion
of Peachtree City.”

Heiner Moller
Vice President Operations Americas & Asia Medical Systems

machines including precision tools, beginning validation as well as fitting and testing
assembly lines. After all, we will be commencing mass production of an asthma inhaler
for the US market in 2016. In-house, high-precision, clean-room production — ultimately

for the benefit of all those suffering from asthma.

PEACHTREE. CITY
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Our customers are getting better and better and they expect the same from
us. High quality - regardless of where we are supplying them from. That’s why
we equip all plants manufacturing injection vials with the same cutting-edge
machinery worldwide. So customers and patients in the USA, Europe and Asia
can all rely on the vials in the same way.

We make our products locally in line with customer wishes. “Locally”
means wherever the customer manufactures and packages the
medication. Take this real example of a US pharmaceuticals company
that produces an active substance in India, fills and packages it in
India, and would like to be supplied locally with pharmaceutical
packaging. The finished medication is then shipped to the United
States, where it is sold. Naturally, the customer in India wants to
have the same quality vials as can be found elsewhere. And, of
course, the FDA in the USA is increasingly inspecting pharmaceu-
ticals companies on-site in China, India and other countries if they
produce medication for the US market. Moreover, Chinese and
other supervisory authorities rightly hold companies to similarly
high standards when it comes to patient safety.

Here’s an example of how we deal with this: We produce injection
vials in nine plants around the world — in other words, containers
from which syringes draw vaccines or cancer medicines. In 2013,
the green light was given for an ambitious multi-year program of
investments in the double-digit million range. The aim is to provide

our customers with significantly improved injection vials of the
highest quality. Wherever customers procure their vials — in this
business unit, our top quality standards are ensured in every one of
our plants by the same latest generation of machines coupled with
control and inspection systems. We began to deliver and install the
new generation of machines at our plant in Morganton, USA, in
2014. Our team in Morganton is what we might call our best-in-
class when it comes to injection vials. Shortly after that, we began
installing the new machines at our sister plant in Vineland, USA,
meaning that the upgrade in the USA was completed in 2015.
Colleagues from our other plants across the globe are trained on
the new machines in the USA. In Queretaro, Mexico, the process
kicked off in 2015 — all the new machines will be installed there
in 2016. It is also Europe’s turn in 2016. Plus Kosamba in India
for sure, as we are in the process of building a brand new plant
there. And the plants in China are also on the starting blocks.
Initial feedback from customers is extremely positive. To put it
in technical terms: Vials that far exceed the industry standard in
cosmetic and dimensional terms.



2016 OFF TO A FLYING START IN KOSAMBA WITH
THE LATEST MACHINERY

We have a moulded glass plant in Kosamba, India, not
far from Mumbai. In 2015, a brand new plant for injec-
tion vials and ampoules was built right next door. The
work on the interior is extensive and complex. Especially
the installation of the clean-room technology. The first
machines have been shipped to Kosamba, with more to
follow — naturally, all of the latest generation. Preparations
are underway for assessment and approval by customers,
what we call validation. Commercial production is set to
begin in earnest at the end of 2016, first with injection
vials and then also with ampoules. The products are to
be sold to all customers requiring pharmaceutical pack-
aging manufactured to the highest international quality
standards.

H Ejk 1““(*7 vial_ Pwl«c’(fom worldwide -
Soon in thé new plart in lndia tor
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NEW MACHINERY - NEW INSPECTION SYSTEMS

We are installing two types of machinery for the production
of injection vials at our plants around the world. One type
was developed in-house by our own engineers and built by
a partner. The other type is being procured from a European
machine builder. The two types of machinery are comple-
mented by our internally developed control, inspection and
packaging technologies Gx® G3, Gx® RHOC and Gx® THOR,
which are part of a close-knit testing system guaranteeing
the ultimate in precision and quality assurance based on the
latest standard.

5x5

Gx® G3: Five HD cameras with five
times better resolution reliably
detect cosmetic flaws

@ More information:
www.gerresheimer.com
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Gerresheimer AG ANNUAL REPORT 2015

REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

» Dr. Axel Herberg
Chairman of the
Supervisory Board

In the financial year 2015, the Supervisory Board devoted considerable
time and attention to the Company’s position and fulfilled all its obligations
under the law, the Company’s Articles of Association and the Rules of the
Supervisory Board. Those obligations include consultations on the basis of
prompt, regular and comprehensive information provided by the Manage-
ment Board, involvement of the Supervisory Board in decisions of material
importance for the Company and the necessary supervision of management.

The Supervisory Board ensured that it was informed in detail about the
Company’s business development and financial position, including the risk
situation, risk management and compliance. After thorough examination
and discussion, the Supervisory Board — in six meetings and twice by written
circular resolution — voted on the reports and proposed resolutions submitted
by the Management Board to the extent required by law, the Company’s
Articles of Association and the Rules of the Management Board. In addi-
tion, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board was in regular contact with
the Management Board and in particular its Chairman. He was regularly
and promptly informed by the latter about important developments and
upcoming decisions.

PERSONNEL CHANGES ON THE MANAGEMENT
BOARD AND THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

In the financial year 2015, the Company’s Supervisory Board consisted of
Gerhard Schulze as Chairman (until April 30, 2015), Dr. Axel Herberg (Chairman
since April 30, 2015), Francesco Grioli as Deputy Chairman, Sonja Apel, Andrea
Abt (since April 30, 2015), Lydia Armer, Dr. Karin Dorrepaal, Eugen Heinz,
Seppel Kraus, Dr. Peter Noé, Markus Rocholz, Theodor Stuth and Udo J. Vetter.

By decision of the Local Court of Duesseldorf on January 20, 2016, Katja
Mogel was appointed as member of the Supervisory Board to succeed Sonja
Apel, whose membership of the Supervisory Board ceased on termination of
her employment at Gerresheimer AG as of midnight on December 31, 2015.

Throughout the financial year 2015, the Company’s Management Board
consisted of Uwe Rohrhoff as CEO, Rainer Beaujean and Andreas Schutte.
There were no changes to the membership of the Management Board during
that period.

MEETINGS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

The regular discussions held by the full Supervisory Board covered the sales
and earnings performance of the Company as a whole and of the individual
business divisions. Furthermore, important strategic projects were reported
and discussed.

At the Supervisory Board meeting on February 10, 2015, the Annual Financial
Statements of Gerresheimer AG, the Consolidated Financial Statements and
the Combined Management Report for the financial year 2014, the proposal
on the appropriation of accumulated net earnings and the Report of the Super-
visory Board were approved. The Annual Financial Statements were thereby
adopted. At this meeting, the Supervisory Board also adopted a new pension
arrangement to be granted on new appointments to the Management Board.

At its meeting after the Annual General Meeting on April 30, 2015, the
Supervisory Board elected Dr. Axel Herberg as its new Chairman to succeed
Gerhard Schulze, who had departed from the Supervisory Board. Dr. Axel
Herberg was also elected as a member of the Audit Committee and as a
member and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee. Udo J. Vetter was
elected as a new member of the Presiding Committee. Rainer Beaujean was
also reappointed as member of the Management Board.

Atits June 9, 2015 meeting, the Supervisory Board approved the replacement
of the previous EUR 400m credit facility agreement with a EUR 450m revolving
credit facility as part of a refinancing arrangement.
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After intensive discussion in previous Supervisory Board meetings, the Super-
visory Board on June 25, 2015 adopted a written circular resolution approving
the sale of the tubing business together with the execution of a long-term
tubing supply agreement and the establishment of a joint venture with Corning
for more innovation in pharmaceutical glass packaging.

At its meeting on July 22, 2015, the Supervisory Board approved the acquisition
of Centor, USA, along with a bridge loan facility for this acquisition.

On August 28, 2015, again by written circular resolution, the Supervisory
Board approved various capital transfers within the Gerresheimer Group to
make the loan amount taken out by Gerresheimer AG to finance the purchase
price for Centor available to the acquiring US entity.

On September 9, 2015, the main focus of the Supervisory Board, which
afforded considerable time and attention to the matter, was the corporate
strategy drawn up by the Management Board. The Supervisory Board also dealt
with the annual declaration of compliance in accordance with Section 161 of
the German Stock Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz), the engagement of the
auditor for the financial year 2015, the reference to the applicable statutory
provision on the percentage of women in supervisory boards in the Company’s
targeted composition of the Supervisory Board and the Rules of the Supervisory
Board, as well as the first-time objective for a percentage female membership
of the Management Board.

The main items dealt with at the Supervisory Board meeting on November 24,
2015 were the Group’s medium-term planning and the approval of the budget
for the financial year 2016.

No member of the Supervisory Board took part in only half of or fewer
Supervisory Board meetings in the financial year 2015. One Supervisory Board
member was absent with apologies in two and one member in one of the
six meetings.

At its meeting on February 10, 2016, the Supervisory Board focused on the
approval of the Annual Financial Statements and the Management Report of
Gerresheimer AG, the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Consolidated
Management Report for the financial year 2015 as well as the proposal for
appropriation of retained earnings.

MEETINGS OF THE COMMITTEES

To ensure that its duties are performed efficiently, the Supervisory Board
has set up four committees: the Mediation Committee in accordance
with Section 27 (3) of the German Codetermination Act (Mitbestim-
mungsgesetz), the Presiding Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee. These committees prepare topics for resolution
by the full Supervisory Board and, in certain cases, also have authority to
take decisions autonomously. The Mediation Committee and the Presiding
Committee each consists of two shareholder representatives and two
employee representatives. The Audit Committee also has an equal number
of shareholder and employee representatives and comprises six members.
The Nomination Committee has three members and consists solely of
shareholder representatives.
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The Presiding Committee prepares the Supervisory Board's personnel-related
decisions, notably the appointment and dismissal of Management Board
members as well as decisions regarding the remuneration of Manage-
ment Board members. In place of the Supervisory Board, the Presiding
Committee decides on the signing, amendment and termination of the
service contracts of Management Board members, except in the case of
remuneration issues requiring the approval of the full Supervisory Board.
The Presiding Committee met on December 16, 2014 and addressed
a new pension arrangement for future members of the Management
Board, as well as the reappointment of Rainer Beaujean. At its meeting on
November 23, 2015, the Presiding Committee dealt with Uwe Réhrhoff's
announcement that he would no longer be standing for reappointment
as CEO after February 2018.

In particular, the responsibilities of the Audit Committee include prepar-
ing Supervisory Board decisions on the adoption of the Annual Financial
Statements and the approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements
as well as discussing the Quarterly Financial Reports and the Half-Year
Financial Report. The Audit Committee’s remit also includes monitoring
the accounting process, the effectiveness of the internal control system,
risk reporting and the risk management system, the internal audit system
and compliance. The Audit Committee met four times, on February 9,
April 13, July 8 and October 7, 2015. Its discussions focused on the reports
on the audit of the Annual Financial Statements and Consolidated Financial
Statements for the financial year 2014 as well as the Quarterly Financial
Reports and Half-Year Financial Report for 2015. The Audit Committee also
looked at the independence of the auditor, submitted the recommendation
to the Annual General Meeting regarding the election of the auditor, issued
the auditor with the audit engagement for the financial year 2015, and
set out and monitored the audit process as well as the focal points of the
audit, including the agreement on the audit fee. In addition, the Audit
Committee discussed the effectiveness of the internal audit system as well
as compliance at Gerresheimer.

The Nomination Committee recommends suitable candidates to the
Supervisory Board for the proposed resolutions the latter puts to the
Annual General Meeting for the election of Supervisory Board members
as shareholder representatives. In the past financial year, the Nomination
Committee met on December 15, 2014. At that meeting, it dealt with
the appointment of a successor to Gerhard Schulze as a member of the
Supervisory Board following his departure as of the close of the 2015
Annual General Meeting and drew up a proposal for submission to the
full Supervisory Board.

The Mediation Committee did not meet during the past financial year.

All committee members took part in all Supervisory Board committee
meetings in the financial year 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Supervisory Board continuously monitored the development of cor-
porate governance standards. The Company’s Management Board and
Supervisory Board report on corporate governance in the Gerresheimer
Group on pages 21 to 23 of the Annual Report. On September 9, 2015, the
Management Board and Supervisory Board submitted the annual Compliance
Declaration in accordance with Section 161 of the German Stock Corporation
Act (Aktiengesetz) and made it permanently available to shareholders on
the Company’s website.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2015

The Annual Financial Statements, Management Report, Consolidated Financial
Statements and Consolidated Management Report drawn up by the Man-
agement Board for the financial year from December 1, 2014 to November
30, 2015 were audited by, and received an unqualified auditor’s opinion
from, Deloitte & Touche GmbH Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft, Duesseldorf.

The Annual Financial Statements and Management Report of Gerresheimer AG,
the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Consol- idated Management
Report, the proposal on the appropriation of accumulated net earnings and
the auditor’s reports for the financial year 2015 were made available to the
Supervisory Board for examination. The Audit Committee discussed and
examined the documents in detail at its meeting on February 9, 2016 and
issued recommended resolutions to the Supervisory Board. The latter examined
the Annual Financial Statements and Management Report of Gerresheimer AG,
the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Consolidated Management Report,
the proposal on the appropriation of accumulated net earnings and the
auditor’s reports on these at the Supervisory Board meeting on February 10,
2016. The auditor attended the meetings of the Audit Committee and the
Supervisory Board, reported on the conduct and main findings of the audit,
and was available to answer questions.
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On completion of the examination by the Audit Committee and on
completion of its own examination, the Supervisory Board approves the
auditor’s findings and declares that there are no objections to be raised.
The Supervisory Board has adopted the Annual Financial Statements and
approved the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Supervisory Board
concurs with the Management Board's proposal for the appropriation of
accumulated net earnings.

The Supervisory Board thanks the Management Board and all employees of
Gerresheimer AG and its affiliated companies for their contribution to the
Gerresheimer Group’s successful performance in the financial year 2015.

Duesseldorf, February 10, 2016

A/M

Dr. Axel Herberg
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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Gerresheimer AG identifies with the objectives of the German Corporate
Governance Code and the principles of transparent and responsible manage-
ment and supervision of the Company with the goal of value enhancement.
The Management Board, the Supervisory Board as well as all executives and
employees of Gerresheimer AG are obligated to pursue these objectives
and principles. With one exception, Gerresheimer AG complies with all
recommendations of the German Corporate Governance Code as amended
on May 5, 2015.

MANAGEMENT BOARD

The Management Board of Gerresheimer AG consists of a minimum of two
members. The Supervisory Board decides on the number of Management
Board members subject to this proviso. The Supervisory Board nominates one
Management Board member as chairman of the Management Board or as its
spokesperson. The Management Board manages the Company autonomously.
In so doing, it is bound to act in the Company’s best interests and obligated
to increase shareholder value on a sustainable basis.

The Management Board informs the Supervisory Board regularly, promptly and
comprehensively of all issues relevant to the Company with regard to planning,
business performance, the risk situation, risk management and compliance.
Some of the key transactions and measures provided for in the Rules of
the Management Board require the prior consent of the Supervisory Board.

The composition of the Management Board in the financial year 2015 is
presented on page 127 of the Annual Report.

SUPERVISORY BOARD

The Supervisory Board of Gerresheimer AG consists of twelve members, half
of whom represent the shareholders and half the employees. The shareholder
representatives are generally elected by the Annual General Meeting and
the employee representatives by the employees. The term of office of the
current Supervisory Board members extends until the end of the Annual
General Meeting in 2017.

The Supervisory Board monitors and advises the Management Board in
running the business. To fulfill its duties, the Supervisory Board regularly
discusses business performance as well as planning, strategy and strategy
implementation with the Management Board. The Supervisory Board ap-
proves the annual budget drawn up by the Management Board and decides
on adoption of the Annual Financial Statements as well as approval of the
Consolidated Financial Statements of Gerresheimer AG, notably taking
the auditor’s reports into account. The Supervisory Board also decides on
the appointment and dismissal of Management Board members and their
remuneration. In the event of a tied vote in the Supervisory Board, the
Chairman of the Supervisory Board will have two votes if a new ballot on
the same matter is held and there is still a tie.

The composition of the Supervisory Board in the financial year 2015 is
presented on pages 126 and 127 of the Annual Report. The Annual General
Meeting on April 30, 2015 elected Andrea Abt as member of the Supervisory

Board to succeed Gerhard Schulze, who departed from the Supervisory Board
effective at the end of such Annual General Meeting. By court decision of
January 20, 2016, Katja Mogel was appointed as member of the Supervisory
Board as employee representative to succeed Sonja Apel, whose membership
of the Supervisory Board ceased as of December 31, 2015.

The work of the Supervisory Board is supported by committees. According
to the Rules of the Supervisory Board, the following Supervisory Board
committees must be formed:

The Mediation Committee, set up in accordance with Section 27 (3) of
the German Codetermination Act, presents proposals to the Supervisory
Board for the appointment of Management Board members if the required
majority of two-thirds of the votes of the Supervisory Board members is
not obtained in the first ballot. In the past financial year, the Mediation
Committee consisted of Gerhard Schulze (Chairman) (until April 30, 2015),
Dr. Axel Herberg (Chairman) (since April 30, 2015), Dr. Karin Dorrepaal,
Francesco Grioli and Eugen Heinz.

The Presiding Committee prepares the Supervisory Board'’s personnel-related
decisions. In place of the Supervisory Board, the Presiding Committee de-
cides on the signing, amendment and termination of the service contracts
and pension agreements of Management Board members, except in the
case of remuneration issues requiring the approval of the full Supervisory
Board. Furthermore, the Presiding Committee is responsible for approving
transactions between the Company and members of the Management
Board. The Presiding Committee also decides on the approval of contracts
with Supervisory Board members in accordance with Section 114 of the
German Stock Corporation Act and on granting loans to the group of
persons specified in Sections 89 and 115 of the German Stock Corporation
Act. In the past financial year, the Presiding Committee was composed
of Gerhard Schulze (Chairman) (until April 30, 2015), Dr. Axel Herberg
(Chairman since April 30, 2015), Lydia Armer, Francesco Grioli and Udo
J. Vetter (since April 30, 2015).

The Audit Committee prepares the Supervisory Board's decisions on adoption
of the Annual Financial Statements, approval of the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the agreement with the auditor, among other things. Further-
more, the Audit Committee discusses the Quarterly Financial Reports and
the Half-Year Financial Report. It takes appropriate measures to establish
and monitor the independence of the auditor. The Audit Committee also
supports the Supervisory Board in monitoring the management. In this
context, the Audit Committee deals with supervision of the accounting
process, the effectiveness of the internal control system, risk reporting and
the risk management system, the internal audit system and compliance.
In the past financial year, the Audit Committee was made up of Theodor
Stuth (Chairman), Francesco Grioli, Dr. Axel Herberg (since April 30, 2015),
Seppel Kraus, Dr. Peter Noé, Markus Rocholz and Gerhard Schulze (until
April 30, 2015).

The Nomination Committee presents proposals to the Supervisory Board
regarding suitable candidates for its election proposals to the Annual
General Meeting with regard to Supervisory Board members as shareholder
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representatives. In the past financial year, the Nomination Committee was
made up of Gerhard Schulze (Chairman) (until April 30, 2015), Dr. Axel
Herberg (Chairman) (since April 30, 2015), Dr. Karin Dorrepaal and Udo
J. Vetter.

Pursuant to the German Corporate Governance Code and the Rules of
the Management Board and the Supervisory Board, the members of the
Management Board and the Supervisory Board must disclose any conflicts of
interest to the Chairman of the Supervisory Board. In the event of significant
conflicts of interest that are not merely temporary in nature, the Supervisory
Board member in question must resign from office. In its report to the Annual
General Meeting, the Supervisory Board provides information on any conflicts
of interest that have arisen and how they have been handled. No conflicts
of interest arose during the reporting period with regard to Management
Board or Supervisory Board members.

In compliance with item 5.4.1 of the German Corporate Governance Code,
the Supervisory Board in its meeting on September 9, 2015 stipulated the
following revised specific objectives with regard to the composition of the
Supervisory Board, supplementary to the requirements for Supervisory Board
members under the law and the German Corporate Governance Code:

Knowledge, skills and professional experience

The Supervisory Board must be composed in such a way that its members as
a group possess the knowledge, skills and professional experience required
to properly complete its tasks. Candidates proposed must have the integrity,
commitment, independence and personality to enable them to perform
the duties of a Supervisory Board member in the parent company of an
internationally operating group and to uphold its good reputation among
the public.

The various functional areas of the Company should be represented by
individual members of the Supervisory Board of Gerresheimer AG. Each
Supervisory Board member should be as specialized as possible in areas of
relevance to the Company’s business operations. Proposals for candidates to
the Supervisory Board should be made such as to ensure a balanced com-
position with the desired areas of expertise represented on the Supervisory
Board as broadly as possible. The objective is for

» at least two representatives of the shareholders to have experience in the
fields of business management, strategy and human resources;

» at least one representative of the shareholders to have Company-specific
knowledge of the industry; and

» at least one representative of the shareholders to have specific industry
knowledge on the customer side.

Independence and conflicts of interest

The Supervisory Board should include independent members in a number
it deems to be sufficient. A Supervisory Board member is regarded as inde-
pendent if that member has no business or personal connection with the
Company or its Management Board that constitutes a conflict of interest. In
the judgment of the Supervisory Board, former members of the Company’s
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Management Board are not deemed to be independent until five years
after leaving office. The existence of an employment relationship between
a Supervisory Board member and Gerresheimer AG or a Group company, or
the existence of pension commitments with one of these companies for the
benefit of a Supervisory Board member, does not in itself constitute such a
conflict of interest. In this connection, the Supervisory Board stipulates the
following objectives for its composition:

» Supervisory Board members should not perform any functions in a con-
trolling body or any advisory functions for significant competitors of the
Company or a Group company;

» Supervisory Board members should not take on any active role with
customers or suppliers of the Company or a Group company; and

» at least four out of six representatives of the shareholders on the Supervisory
Board should be independent.

Age limit

The term of office of a Supervisory Board member ceases at the end of the
first Annual General Meeting following the member’s seventieth birthday.
The Supervisory Board supports election proposals for candidates who will
turn seventy during the statutory election period; however, their terms of
office also cease at the end of the first Annual General Meeting following
their seventieth birthday.

Internationalism
At least one representative of the shareholders should have several years’
professional international business experience or be of foreign nationality.

Diversity
The minimum percentages of women and men on the Supervisory Board
follow statutory requirements as amended.

The Supervisory Board in its current composition fulfills all of the above
objectives.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting is the representative body of the shareholders
and makes fundamental decisions for Gerresheimer AG. These include
profit appropriation, formal approval of the acts of the Management Board
and Supervisory Board, election of the shareholder representatives to the
Supervisory Board and election of the auditor. In addition, the Annual General
Meeting decides on amendments to the Articles of Association and key
corporate measures, particularly inter-company agreements and conversions,
the issue of new shares, convertible bonds and bonds with warrants as well
as the authorization to purchase own shares.

The shareholders have the opportunity to exercise their voting rights at the
Annual General Meeting themselves or to arrange for these to be exercised
through a proxy of their choice or a voting representative of the Company
who is bound by instructions. The Annual General Meeting is chaired by
the Chairman of the Supervisory Board.
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FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING

Financial accounting in the Gerresheimer Group is based on the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The Annual Financial Statements of
Gerresheimer AG are prepared in accordance with the German Commercial
Code (Handelsgesetzbuch/HGB).

The auditor is elected by the Annual General Meeting in accordance with
statutory provisions. Deloitte & Touche GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft,
Duesseldorf, was appointed as auditor for the financial year 2015. The Super-
visory Board commissions the auditor elected by the Annual General Meeting
and determines the key audit priorities as well as the fee. It ensures that the
auditor’s work is not impaired by any conflicts of interest.

The Company has entered into long-term, variable share-based payment
agreements (“Phantom Stock Program”) with all members of the Manage-
ment Board. This Phantom Stock Program is presented and published in the
remuneration report included in the Consolidated Management Report. In
order to avoid unnecessary duplication, this Corporate Governance Report
explicitly adopts the presentation in the Consolidated Management Report
and hereby refers thereto.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Good corporate governance includes responsible management of risks to
the enterprise. For this purpose, Gerresheimer AG has set up a systematic
risk management system above and beyond the legally required early warn-
ing system for going concern risk. The risk management system ensures
timely risk identification, evaluation and control. It is subject to continuous
improvement, which helps to optimize risk positions.

TRANSPARENCY

Gerresheimer AG communicates openly, actively and comprehensively. It
informs shareholders, shareholder associations, analysts and interested
members of the public regularly, without delay and on an equal-entitlement
basis of the Company’s position and of key business changes. The Company’s
website (www.gerresheimer.com) is one of the primary mediums used for
this purpose. The website contains the annual and interim reports, press
releases, ad hoc announcements and other notifications in accordance with
the German Securities Trading Act, the financial calendar and other relevant
information. In addition, Gerresheimer AG regularly organizes analyst and
press conferences as well as events for investors.

REMUNERATION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

The remuneration paid to the Supervisory Board in the financial year 2015
is presented and published in the remuneration report included in the Con-
solidated Management Report. In order to avoid unnecessary duplication,
this Corporate Governance Report explicitly adopts the presentation in the
Consolidated Management Report and hereby refers thereto.
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REMUNERATION OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

The remuneration paid to the Management Board in the financial year 2015
is likewise presented and published in the remuneration report included
in the Consolidated Management Report. Here again, in order to avoid
unnecessary duplication, this Corporate Governance Report explicitly adopts
the presentation in the Consolidated Management Report and hereby refers
thereto.

On April 30, 2015, the Annual General Meeting of the Company approved
the remuneration system for the members of the Management Board. There
have been no changes to the system since.

DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE

Pursuant to Section 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act, the manage-
ment board and supervisory board of listed German stock corporations are
required to make an annual declaration of whether the recommendations
of the “Government Commission on the German Corporate Governance
Code” as published by the Federal Ministry of Justice in the official section
of the Federal Law Gazette (Bundesanzeiger) have been and will continue
to be complied with, or which recommendations have not been or are not
being applied, and the reasons for this.

On September 9, 2015, the Management Board and the Supervisory Board
of Gerresheimer AG approved the following, most recent, Declaration of
Compliance:

“Declaration of the Management Board and Supervisory Board
of Gerresheimer AG on the recommendations of the ‘Government
Commission on the German Corporate Governance Code’ according to
Section 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act

Since its last declaration on September 9, 2014, Gerresheimer AG has complied
with all recommendations of the ‘Government Commission on the German
Corporate Governance Code’ as amended on May 13, 2013.

Gerresheimer AG will in future comply with the recommendations of the
‘Government Commission on the German Corporate Governance Code’ as
amended on May 5, 2015, with the following exception:

Number 5.4.1, paragraph 2, clause 1: The Supervisory Board has not defined
a regular limit for length of membership on the Supervisory Board.

Justification: Suitability for performing the duties of the Supervisory Board
depends in our opinion solely on the respective requirements of the Company
and the individual competences of Supervisory Board members. We do not
consider it to be meaningful to set a regular limit for length of membership
on the Supervisory Board as the expert knowledge of experienced Supervisory
Board members should be available to the Company.”

The preceding Declaration of Compliance dated September 9, 2014 is also
available on the Company’s website at www.gerresheimer.com.
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GERRESHEIMER ON THE CAPITAL MARKETS

DIVERGENT STOCK MARKET TRENDS IN FINANCIAL
YEAR 2015

Major stock indices in Europe and America followed diverging trends in the
financial year 2015. While the European and German equity markets recorded
slight or substantial gains, the US Dow Jones and S&P 500 indices showed
practically no change year on year. Notably, fears of a possible slowdown in
Chinese economic growth somewhat dampened market sentiment in the
second half of the year. Nonetheless, investors generally viewed the prospects
of stocks listed in the MDAX index in a positive light, allowing the MDAX to
rise in the course of the financial year 2015 and to show a gain of 12.0% as
of the January 19, 2016 editorial date.

SUBSTANTIAL GAIN IN GERRESHEIMER SHARE PRICE

The price of Gerresheimer shares (ISIN: DEOOOAOLD6E6) performed very
favorably in the financial year 2015. After a somewhat sluggish start to the
financial year 2015, the share price subsequently picked up sharply through
to July 2015 and then shot up by around another EUR 12 within only a few
days of the announcement of Gerresheimer’s acquisition of Centor in late
July. This reflected market approval of the takeover of what is the highly

Gerresheimer Shares Versus MDAX
Index: November 30, 2014 = 100%
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profitable market leader in plastic packaging for oral prescription medication
in the US end-consumer market. Following a brief pullback, the share price
went on to make further very substantial gains in the last three months of the
financial year, in the course of which it marked an all-time high closing price
of EUR 76.32 on November 17, 2015. Although subsequent to this it was not
quite possible to maintain the high level attained, the EUR 73.90 share price
as of November 30, 2015 represented 66.3% net value growth during the
financial year 2015. Of all 50 equities in the MDAX index, Gerresheimer shares
consequently showed the third-best price performance in the financial year
2015. After the balance sheet date, headlines about the possible slowdown
of the Chinese economy and the heavy decline of the oil price also made the
shares give back some of their previous gains. But, Gerresheimer shares still
managed to trade at a price of EUR 66.64 per share, and therefore posted
a strong overall gain of 50.0% as of the January 19, 2016 editorial date.

The Company’'s market capitalization at the end of the financial year on
November 30, 2015, amounted to EUR 2,320.5m. According to the German
Stock Exchange index ranking, Gerresheimer shares advanced to 22nd place
in MDAX (prior year: 33rd place). In terms of stock exchange turnover, the
Company’s shares held 37th place at the reporting date (prior year: 38th
place).
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BUY OR HOLD RECOMMENDATION FROM MOST
ANALYSTS

Fifteen bank analysts reported on Gerresheimer shares at the editorial date
on January 19, 2016. Six analysts recommended to buy and a further eight
analysts gave a hold recommendation. Only one analyst gave a sell recom-
mendation. The following charts provide an overview of the banks reporting
on January 19, 2016, along with their recommendations:

Analyst Coverage
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Gerresheimer Shares: Key Data

2015 2014
Number of shares at reporting date in million 314 314
Share price? at reporting date in EUR 73.90 44.44
Market capitalization at reporting date in EUR m 2,320.5 1,395.4
Share price high" during reporting period in EUR 76.32 56.42
Share price low" during reporting period in EUR 41.99 42.31
Earnings per share in EUR 3.32 2.1
Adjusted earnings per share? in EUR 3.41 2.89
Dividend per share in EUR 0.85% 0.75

Berenberg Bank Hauck & Aufhduser LBBW
Commerzbank HSBC MainFirst
Credit Suisse Independent Research Metzler
Deutsche Bank J.P. Morgan Cazenove Montega

DZ Bank Kepler Cheuvreux Morgan Stanley

Overview of Analyst Recommendations
(as of January 19, 2016)

Number (prior year)

Hold/Neutral
8 (9)

Buy/
Add/
Overweight/
Outperform
6 (6)

Sell/

Reduce/
Underperform
1)

2015 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: ONCE AGAIN
VERY STRONG SHAREHOLDER ATTENDANCE;
DIVIDEND RAISED TO EUR 0.75 PER SHARE

Some 78.5% of the capital stock was represented at the year's Annual General
Meeting in Duesseldorf on April 30, 2015. Attendance in 2014 was 71.8%.
This is a remarkable attendance rate considering Gerresheimer shares have a
100% free float. A EUR 0.75 per share dividend was approved by resolution
and distributed to shareholders on May 4, 2015. This was the fourth dividend
increase in succession. The prior year’s dividend was EUR 0.70 per share. All
resolutions put forward were passed with a wide majority.

" Xetra closing price.
2 Adjusted net income after non-controlling interests divided by 31.4m shares.
3 Proposed appropriation of net earnings.

CONTINUED STRONG INTEREST AMONG
INTERNATIONAL INVESTORS

Interest in Gerresheimer shares remains strong in the international arena and
was again reflected in our shareholder structure in the past financial year. As
of the January 19, 2016 editorial date, the majority of shares were held by
foreign investors. The largest proportion, around 34% of shares, was held
by investors from North America, followed by British investors who held a
share of some 33%. Next came Dutch investors accounting for around 16%
of the total. A further 8% of shares were held by German investors. The free
float remained unchanged at 100% as of the editorial date.

Shareholder Structure by Region

In % (prior year)

Germany
8 (8)

Other
9 (9)

The Netherlands
16 (9)

North America
34 (34)

United Kingdom
33 (40)
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TRANSPARENT SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

Shareholders are required to notify the company concerned and the Federal
German Institute for Supervision of Financial Services (Bundesanstalt fiir
Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht — BaFin) when specified notification thresholds
are reached or crossed. According to the notifications we received up to
January 19, 2016, the following persons and institutions held more than 3%
or 5% of Gerresheimer shares as of the notification dates listed in the table.
These investors thus hold a combined 31.1% of Gerresheimer AG shares:

Share Date of
Company in% Notification
Templeton Investment Counsel LLC 499 January 12,2016
Franklin Advisory Services LLC 473  September 11, 2015
APG Asset Management N.V. 5.10 July 30, 2015
Old Mutual Plc 3.01  January 23, 2015
NN Group N.V. (formerly ING Groep N.V.) 5.20 September 17,2014
EP Overseas Fund Ltd. & EP Master Fund Ltd.
(Eton Park Capital Management, L.L.C.) 492  July 16,2012
Gilchrist B. Berg (Water Street Capital, Inc.) 3.10 February 16, 2010

Reference Data for the Shares

ISIN DEOOOAOLD6GE6G
WKN AOLD6E
Bloomberg reference GXI

GXIG.DE

MDAX, CDAX, HDAX, Prime All Share, Classic
All Share, EURO STOXX TMI, Russell Global Small
Cap Growth Index and further sector and size
indexes

Berlin, Duesseldorf, Frankfurt (Xetra und floor
trading), Hamburg, Hanover, Munich, Stuttgart

Reuters reference

Stock index membership

Listings
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GERRESHEIMER BOND PRICE TRADED SLIGHTLY
LOWER AT HIGH LEVEL SINCE THE BEGINNING OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2015

After further net gains in the first three months of the financial year 2015,
the Gerresheimer bond price (ISIN: XS0626028566) traded slightly lower at
a high level afterwards. In the prior year, rating agency Moody’s had upgrad-
ed Gerresheimer AG by one level from previously Ba1 to investment grade
Baa3. The agency attributed the higher rating mainly to the resilience of
Gerresheimer’s business model in recent years despite challenging economic
conditions. Other reasons given were the Company’s prudent financial
policies, its highly diversified revenue base and the positive fundamentals
underlying Gerresheimer’s key markets. On July 31, 2015 and January 15,
2016, Moody's confirmed the Baa3 rating, but placed the outlook on
“negative” on January 15, 2016, mainly due to the anticipated increase
in Gerresheimer’s debt following the acquisition of Centor in July 2015.

However, the bond price remained at a high level, closing at 109.3% as of
the January 19, 2016 editorial date. This high level is additionally under-
scored by the effective interest rate (yield to maturity) on an investment
in the bonds, which stood at some 1.1% p.a. as of the editorial date. The
low effective interest rate, which remains virtually unchanged relative to
the prior-year reporting date, shows that investors continue to regard
Gerresheimer bonds as a highly secure investment. The bond can be traded
in Frankfurt in floor trading as well as on regional exchanges in Germany.

Gerresheimer AG Corporate Bond: Price Performance
November 30, 2014 = 113.0%
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Bond Reference Data

ISIN X50626028566
WKN ATH3VP

Issuer Gerresheimer AG
Volume EUR 300m
Coupon/coupon date 5% p.a./May 19
Maturity date May 19, 2018
Bond price" at reporting date  109.6%
Effective annual interest

rate (yield to maturity)?

at reporting date 0.7% p.a.

Standard & Poor’s: BBB-, stable outlook
Moody’s: Baa3, negative outlook

Standard & Poor’s: BBB-, stable outlook
Moody’s: Baa3, negative outlook

EUR 1,000.00 par value

Berlin, Duesseldorf, Frankfurt (floor trading),
Hamburg, Hanover, Munich, Stuttgart

Bond rating at reporting date

Corporate rating at
reporting date

Denomination

Listings

" Closing price, Stuttgart Stock Exchange.
2 Based on the closing price on Stuttgart Stock Exchange.

INTENSIVE DIALOG WITH INVESTORS AND ANALYSTS
CONTINUED

During the financial year 2015, we remained in dialog with investors and
analysts through numerous road shows, conferences and telephone conference
calls, as well as a host of one-to-one conversations. In addition, we further
stepped up our dialog with investors and analysts on the bond side.
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As in prior years, members of the Management Board and the Investor Re-
lations & Creditor Relations Team visited key financial centers in Europe and
North America. These included Frankfurt, Berlin, Hamburg, London, New York,
Toronto and Montreal. Our goal is open, timely and sustained communication
with all interested parties. You will find an up-to-date financial calendar,
including upcoming events at which we will present the Company, on our
website at www.gerresheimer.com/en/investor-relations.

Financial Calendar

February 11, 2016 Annual Report 2015

April 13,2016 Interim Report 1st Quarter 2016
April 28, 2016 Annual General Meeting 2016
July 7, 2016 Interim Report 2nd Quarter 2016

October 6, 2016 Interim Report 3rd Quarter 2016

HIGH PRIORITY OF CAPITAL MARKET
COMMUNICATION

Continuous dialog with investors and analysts is an important part of our
corporate philosophy. We are available to answer your questions and listen
to your suggestions regarding any aspect related to Gerresheimer shares,
the Gerresheimer bond or the Company. You can contact us as follows:

Gerresheimer AG

Investor Relations & Creditor Relations
Klaus-Bungert-Strasse 4

40468 Duesseldorf

Germany

Phone +492116181-257

Fax +492116181-121

E-mail gerresheimer.ir@gerresheimer.com
www.gerresheimer.com/investor-relations
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FINANCIAL YEAR 2015
AT A GLANCE

» All targets attained in 2015

» Revenues up 6.8% to EUR 1,377.2m; organic revenue growth of 1.5%
(target: 1% to 3%)

» Adjusted EBITDA increased to EUR 277.9m; at constant exchange rates to
EUR 271.9m; at constant exchange rates and excluding Centor acquisition to
EUR 262.4m (target: EUR 255m to EUR 265m)

» Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
as percentage of revenues at constant exchange rates and excluding Centor
acquisition at 9.0% (target: 9% to 10%)

» Adjusted EBITDA margin attains 20.2%, above 20% for the first time
(2014:19.6%)

» Transactions successfully completed

» Acquisition of Centor, US market leader for plastic packaging for oral
prescription medication, completed September 1, 2015

» Sale of glass tubing business (intermediary product in converting activities)
completed November 2, 2015

» Solid Group financing
» EUR 450.0m refinancing completed in June 2015
» Successful EUR 425.0m issuance of bonded loans in November 2015

» International expansion continues

» Expansion of our plant in Peachtree, USA, ready to start mass production
of asthma inhalers in 2016

» Further additions to production capacity at our location in Horsovsky Tyn,
Czech Republic

» Extension and quality improvements successfully completed at our
moulded glass plant in Chicago, USA

» New production building for converting business completed in India;
production to start late 2016

» Increased dividend distribution
» Proposed dividend of EUR 0.85 per share (2014: EUR 0.75 per share)
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THE GERRESHEIMER GROUP
BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

The Gerresheimer Group is a leading international manufacturer of high-qual-
ity specialty glass and plastic products for the global pharma and health-
care industry. Drawing on in-house development and the latest production
technologies, we provide pharmaceutical primary packaging, drug delivery
systems, diagnostic systems, packaging for the cosmetics industry and a full
range of glass products for the life science research sector.

The Group consists of Gerresheimer AG, with its registered office in Duessel-
dorf, Germany, together with its direct and indirect subsidiaries and asso-
ciates. At the end of the financial year 2015, the Group had more than
40 locations in Europe, North and South America and Asia, with 10,684
employees worldwide. This represents a 3.7% reduction in our workforce
compared with November 30, 2014.

As the parent company of the Gerresheimer Group, Gerresheimer AG
manages its direct and indirect subsidiaries and associates.

DIVISIONS

The Gerresheimer Group is managed through strategic business units or-
ganized as divisions. These are aggregated into reporting segments based
on their specific production technologies and the materials used for our
products. From the beginning of the financial year 2014, our business model
is organized in the three reporting and operating divisions Plastics & Devices,
Primary Packaging Glass and Life Science Research.

We follow the management approach in segment reporting in accordance
with IFRS 8. External reporting is consequently based on internal reporting.

PLASTICS & DEVICES

Our product portfolio in the Plastics & Devices Division includes complex, cus-
tomer-specific products for the simple and safe administration of medicines.
These include insulin pens, inhalers and prefillable syringes. The division also
takes in diagnostics and medical technology products such as skin-prick aids
and test systems, as well as pharmaceutical plastic containers for liquid and
solid medicines with closure and safety systems.

In this division, we develop complex systems and system components made
of plastic on an individual project basis. Our target market here comprises
customers in the pharma industry, diagnostics and medical technology. We
provide tailored services for these customers, spanning every link in the
Medical Systems value chain. Our Medical Plastic Systems products range
from inhalers for the treatment of respiratory diseases to lancets and insulin
pen systems for diabetics as well as an extensive array of test systems and
disposable products for laboratory and molecular diagnostics.
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The Plastics & Devices Division also includes plastic system packaging for use
with liquid and solid medication. Our broad range of high-quality primary
drug packaging products includes application and dosage systems, such as
eye droppers and nasal spray vials, as well as special containers for tablets
and powders. In addition, the range includes tamper-evident multifunctional
closure systems, child-resistant and senior-friendly applications, and inte-
grated moisture absorbers under the Duma® brand name.

In Centor, we also have the leading producer of plastic packaging and
closures for oral prescription medication in the North American end-con-
sumer market. A feature of the US market for prescription medication is
the pour-and-count system. The precise amount of oral medication stated
in a prescription is specially packaged for each patient in a plastic container.
Centor has a strong product portfolio for this purpose, supplying national
and regional pharmacy chains, supermarkets and wholesalers.

PRIMARY PACKAGING GLASS

In the Primary Packaging Glass Division, we produce primary packaging made
of glass for medicines and cosmetics. This includes pharma jars, ampoules,
injection vials, cartridges, perfume flacons and cream jars, plus special glass
containers for the food and drinks industry.

Our range for the pharmaceutical industry covers a broad array of glass primary
packaging products. Moulded glass products meet market and customer
needs with a variety of injection, dropper and syrup bottles. We also produce
high-quality specialty products such as ampoules, vials and cartridges made
with borosilicate glass tubing. On this basis, we offer a virtually complete
range of pharmaceutical packaging in flint and amber glass.

Our product portfolio for the cosmetics industry encompasses high-quality
glass packaging such as vials and glass containers for perfumes, deodorants,
skin-care and wellness products. We process clear, colored and opal glass. All
shaping, coloring, printing and exclusive finishing technologies are available
to us for this purpose.

For the food and drinks industry, we supply both standard and custom
miniature as well as other sizes of bottles and glass containers for products
such as spirit miniatures. Our products include a range of variations such as
amber, flint, colored and opal glass, diverse shape variants as well as numerous
finishing options.
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LIFE SCIENCE RESEARCH
In the Life Science Research Division, we produce glass containers and systems
for special requirements in research, development and analytics. We also
supply general laboratory ware.

The product portfolio spans the arc from standard items for wet chemistry,
such as volumetric flasks, beakers, Erlenmeyer flasks and vials for laboratory
analytics, to more complex products such as distillation and filtration systems,
as well as components for precision lasers. We additionally produce a wide
variety of application-specific variants to meet customer requirements.

GROUP STRATEGY AND OBJECTIVES

Worldwide demand for healthcare is continually growing. Key drivers include
global trends such as rising life expectancy, world population growth and
environmental change. Increasing numbers of out-of-patent drugs and the
trend toward self-medication spell ongoing growth potential for the pharma
and healthcare industry going forward. Quantitative demand growth is ac-
companied by rising quality requirements for pharmaceutical packaging. This
is especially the case for drugs with complex molecular structures and poses
challenges for everyone in the market.

For us as partners in the development and production of quality specialty
packaging for the pharma and cosmetics industry, all this creates opportunities
for further growth. With our global development and production capabilities,
we can meet our customers' increasing needs in terms of impeccable quality
standards — in industrialized nations and emerging markets alike.

We pursue the vision of becoming the leading global partner for enabling
solutions that improve health and well-being.

We will achieve this vision by observing the following guiding principles:

» Understanding our customers and providing them with solutions to both
their present and future needs.

» Living our commitment to excellent quality and continuous innovation.

» Leveraging our technological leadership and competence by acting as
one team.

» Becoming a preferred employer with highly motivated and passionate
employees all over the world.

We aim for profitable, sustained growth and global market leadership in
the markets we serve.

Specifically, this means three things:

» Sustained growth
We target ongoing growth. To attain this goal, we plan to increase revenues
with existing customers and launch new products as well as secure new
regions and customers. We also intend to make selective acquisitions to
this end. Our focus here is to augment our portfolio with additions that
gain us access to new regions or enable us to buy into new technologies.
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» Rising profitability

We aim to attain leading competitive positions in our target markets in
terms of technology and product leadership as well as cost. Key factors
here are our highly qualified workforce and global production network.
Alongside high product quality, this most importantly means we have
control of the cost side. We focus on profitable growth as mirrored in
increasing adjusted EBITDA, higher operating cash flow and, in the medium
term, improved return on capital employed (ROCE).

» Attractive investment and strong partner
Sustained profitable growth makes us an attractive investment for existing
and future investors and a reliable, financially well-resourced partner to
our customers. This is a key factor, notably in the pharma and healthcare
industry, where stable, long-term customer relationships lend a crucial
competitive edge.

The central pillars of our strategy have applied unchanged for several years.
In annual operating and strategic planning, we set the trajectory for the
years ahead and specific targets for the next financial year. We publish these
targets for each year at the beginning of the year.

Our strategy was reflected and successfully implemented in a number of
strategic projects once again in 2015. Among others, such projects in 2015
included the acquisition of Centor U.S. Holding Inc. based in Perrysburg,
Ohio, USA — subsequently referred to as Centor — and the sale of the glass
tubing business. Both these moves significantly enhance our position as
global partners to the pharma industry, boost our profitability and make
Gerresheimer an even more attractive investment.

CONTROL SYSTEM

Our business activities are geared toward sustained, profitable growth and
global market leadership in the pharma and healthcare segments. The
most significant key performance indicators for the Gerresheimer Group
are consequently revenue growth, adjusted EBITDA, operating cash flow,
capital expenditure, net working capital and ROCE.

We measure growth on the basis of the organic period-to-period change in
revenues for the Gerresheimer Group and its divisions. This growth rate is
adjusted to factor out the effects of any acquisitions or divestments and of
exchange rate movements. Our goal is to keep the resulting organic growth
rate above the market growth rate, with separate growth targets assigned
for each division and business unit.

Adjusted EBITDA is our principal measure of profitability. This is defined as
operating earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, less
restructuring expenses and one-off income/expenses. One-off income and
expenses consist of termination benefits for members of the Management
Board, costs of refinancing, reductions in the workforce and large-scale
restructuring (structural and strategic) that do not meet the strict criteria of
IAS 37, costs of acquisitions (up to the acquisition date) and divestments,
corporate legacy costs such as costs of arbitration proceedings, and costs
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relating to the outcomes of tax audits. We aim for cost, technology, work-
force and process leadership relative to our competitors. This enables us
to excel in serving customers’ quality, service, price and innovation needs
and to generate above industry average returns (ratio of adjusted EBITDA
to revenues).

We attach great importance to generating ample cash flow in order to
meet the varied expectations of our stakeholder groups. This is measured
as operating cash flow, which we define as follows: Adjusted EBITDA plus/
minus the change in net working capital (inventories, trade receivables, trade
payables and prepayments made and received), minus capital expenditure.
We set individual target levels by division and business unit for the two KPIs
adjusted EBITDA and operating cash flow.

Rigorous control of capital expenditure is another critical factor in our success.
We appraise each project in each business unit against the same target
parameters. Discounted cash flow analysis, that means discounted income
surplus, and payback periods, thus the amortization period, are important
elements of the appraisal process. Expansion and rationalization projects are
expected to achieve a minimum 18% post-tax internal rate of return and
a payback period of less than three years. Strategic projects are normally
required to have a payback period of no more than five years. New plants
and plant extensions may exceed this.

The third parameter in operating cash flow alongside adjusted EBITDA and
capital expenditure is net working capital. This represents another ongoing
focus of our many improvement measures, including changes in payment
terms, improved receivables collection and production planning optimization
to cut inventory. Our objective is to lower average net working capital
measured on a monthly basis for a lasting reduction in tied-up capital.

Focusing on adjusted EBITDA, capital expenditure (and hence, indirectly,
depreciation) and net working capital also means that we keep watch on
the key operating parameters determining ROCE. This is defined as adjusted
EBITA over average capital employed, meaning equity plus interest-bearing
debt capital less cash and cash equivalents or, using the top-down formula,
total assets less non-interest-bearing liabilities and cash and cash equivalents.
ROCE is a key medium to long-term target metric for us in addition to the
indicators already covered. Based on the targeted 18% minimum post-tax
internal rate of return for expansion and rationalization projects, ROCE
should be in excess of 12% for the Gerresheimer Group.

Alongside the indicators for monitoring the financial development of the
business, non-financial management parameters are also instrumental to
our business success. Of key importance from a Group perspective in this
regard are our readiness to innovate, problem-solving expertise and notably
our ability to attract and retain highly qualified staff.
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BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT
OVERALL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

The International Monetary Fund (IMF)" anticipated a slight decline in the
global economic growth rate in its October 2015 outlook. The IMF experts
lowered the growth forecast by 0.2 percentage points compared to their
last publication in July 2015 to 3.1% (2014: 3.4%). Key factors include
the decline in commodity prices and lower capital flows in the emerging
economies.

After an extended period of weaker growth, there are once again signs of an
upward trend in the euro area. The IMF is predicting growth of 1.5% in the
euro area for 2015 (2014: 0.9%). Among other factors, this trend is being
driven by the low oil price, higher domestic demand, the growth-oriented
monetary policy of the European Central Bank (ECB) and the depreciation
of the euro against other currencies such as the US dollar. Countries such
as ltaly and Spain that saw relatively slow growth over the past few years
are also gradually starting to regain traction. The IMF does not believe that
the Greek economy, which continues to contract, is a contagion risk for
the euro area.

For the reporting year, the IMF is forecasting growth of 1.5% in Germany
(2014: 1.6%). One of the reasons for the slight deterioration was the weak-
ness in a number of emerging economies. By contrast, domestic demand in
Germany continued to gain momentum on the back of lower interest rates.
According to the IMF, consumer spending rose by 1.8% in 2015. Economists
believe that spending on refugees in Germany will have a positive impact on
growth in that country going forward. This is expected to have the effect
of a small economic stimulus program.

In the USA, economists are anticipating growth of 2.4% for 2015 (2014:
2.4%). The country’s upbeat outlook is due among other things to the
low oil price, which benefits consumers and makes a number of industrial
processes cheaper. According to the IMF, the Federal Reserve is expected
to continue its current low interest rate policy, at least in the medium term.

" International Monetary Fund: “World Economic Outlook”, October 2015.
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The recession in some of the emerging economies is easing. Overall, the IMF
expects these to record solid growth of 4.0% in 2015 (2014: 4.6%). The fact
that a number of companies in the emerging economies have taken out loans
in US dollars introduces an element of uncertainty. Any further appreciation
of the US dollar could have a correspondingly negative impact on growth.

According to current estimates, the People’s Republic of China — a key driver
of global growth for many years now — will narrowly miss its GDP growth rate
target of 7% in 2015 (2014: 7.3%). However, with GDP growth of 6.8%
expected in 2015, it is still one of the world’s fastest-growing economies.

The IMF describes India as a “bright spot” in the world economy. Among
other things, this is attributable to more effective policies and the end of
political uncertainty. India is expected to record GDP growth of 7.3% in 2015
(2014: 7.3%). As a result, India — the third largest economy in the world
by purchasing power parity — will probably grow even faster than China
this year and next. After only twelve months in office, the government has
initiated important measures such as a goods and services tax, which is set
to boost growth and government revenue. It also aims to simplify direct
foreign investment in a number of sectors.

According to the IMF, Brazil is in recession. The Brazilian economy is expected
to contract by 3.0% this year (2014: growth of 0.1%), though the IMF is
forecasting a return to economic growth in 2017. The IMF advised the
Brazilian government to continue to drive forward consolidation of the
national budget and to take measures to help reduce inflation.

In Russia, the economic outlook remains fraught: The Russian economy can
expect a 3.8% decline in GDP in 2015 (2014: increase of 0.6%). Alongside
the low oil price, this is primarily due to geopolitical risks from the conflict
with Ukraine and the associated sanctions by the Western community of
states.

SECTORAL DEVELOPMENT

Business sentiment in the pharma industry was again consistently positive
in 2015. The industry was characterized by higher revenues, cost reductions
and product innovations. There is potential for increasing revenue volumes
notably in China and North America. The Russian pharma market showed
clear signs of recovery in 2015. According to IMS Health's? latest review of
the pharmaceutical industry, the trend will remain positive over the next few
years. IMS expects annual spending in the global pharma market to increase
by between 4% and 7% from 2016 to 2020. Although IMS is anticipating
only low single-digit growth rates in the USA and Europe for 2015, global

2 nstitute for Healthcare Informatics: “Global Medicines Use in 2020, November 2015.
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companies may continue to benefit from strong growth in the emerging
economies?. The emerging markets already accounted for some 28% of
worldwide spending on medicines in 2015.

After reaching a volume of USD 936.5bn in 2014, the global pharma market
is expected to exceed USD 1tn in 2015, according to the IMS. Five national
markets — the USA, Japan, China, Germany and France — accounted for well
over half of this volume in 2015. The pharma industry is also witnessing
a surge in demand in the fastest-growing economies. IMS experts believe
that, over the medium term, the global market share will gradually shift
toward emerging economies such as China and Brazil.

In 2015, developments in the sector were also marked by a significant
increase in acquisition and merger activities. Following acquisitions worth
USD 234bn in 2014, the total volume of acquisitions and mergers in the
pharma industry in 2015 amounted to half a trillion US dollars. Aside from
the increase in such transactions, the pharma industry continues to be shaped
by a high level of innovation, making it an important economic driver for a
country — including in Germany. Given the positive economic climate and
high tax income, economic conditions in Germany are ideal for boosting
the country’s role as a pharmaceutical location. Revenues in the pharma
industry amounted to some EUR 46.2bn in 2015.

Overall, the pharma sector is considered to be one of the highest-growth,
most crisis-resistant industries. It continues to benefit from long-term growth
drivers such as demographic change and the increase in life expectancy, which
combine to create rising demand for healthcare. Widespread diseases such as
diabetes, dementia, cancer and allergies also boost demand for healthcare.

This means the number of out-of-patent and biotech drugs is increasing. At
the same time, the industry benefits from the rise in global population and
the middle classes: Diseases of affluence such as cardiovascular disease and
diabetes are on the increase, fueling higher spending on medical care. Besides
innovative manufacturing processes, new compounds and new drugs call
for further refinements in packaging and drug delivery systems. Protecting
the high-quality contents as well as maintaining quality assurance and
unrestricted functionality are a top priority. More and more innovative biotech
medications are being released on the market in the form of injections, which
need to be available in the right concentration in prefilled syringes. With
respect to packaging for medications, this means that manufacturers must
offer a wide range of technologies covering as much of the value chain as
possible. We have played a pioneering role in this area for many years now
with our end-to-end range of pharmaceutical primary packaging products
made of glass and plastic.

3 IMS Health: The emerging economies referred to by the IMS Institute as the pharmerging
countries include Algeria, Argentina, Bangladesh, Brazil, Chile, China, Columbia, Egypt, India,
Indonesia, Kazakhstan, Mexico, Nigeria, Pakistan, the Philippines, Poland, Russia, Saudi Arabia,
South Africa, Turkey and Vietnam.
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The more cyclical market for high-quality cosmetic glass packaging also
performed well in the financial year 2015. Glass packaging with an exclusive
look and feel continues to be highly sought after, once again placing a
premium on glass container design and additional finishing techniques in
the past financial year.

Market demand for life science research products continued to be impacted
by destocking and budget restrictions in the USA. Nonetheless, there were
additional faint signs of stabilization in 2015. The current strength of the US
dollar against the Group currency, the euro, similarly had a positive impact
on business within the scope of consolidation activities.

CURRENCY MARKET TRENDS

The exchange rate of the euro to the US dollar remained under pressure
in 2015 due to the different monetary policies in the two currency zones.
Over the course of the financial year 2015, the continued strength of the
US dollar saw the euro lose around 15% against the US dollar. At the close
of the financial year on November 30, 2015, the exchange rate stood at
1.06 US dollars to the euro, compared with 1.25 US dollars to the euro at
the end of the prior financial year on November 30, 2014. Financial year
2015 started out with a particularly strong US dollar; the exchange rates
of the two currencies then trended mostly sideways between 1.05 and
1.16 US dollars to the euro. The weakness of the euro in the financial year
2015 can be largely explained by the imminent turnaround in interest rates
planned by the FED in the USA, which was then implemented in December
2015 with the first key interest rate hike. Amplifying the effect on the two
currencies was the likelihood that the European Central Bank (ECB) will
stimulate the economy for a longer period of time with its growth-oriented
low interest rate policy.

In the financial year 2015, the average exchange rate from December 1,
2014 to November 30, 2015 was 1.12 US dollars to the euro, lower than
the prior-year average of 1.34 US dollars to the euro. This meant that the
Gerresheimer Group recorded exchange gains on the translation of revenues
in US dollars into euros, the Group currency.

Most other currencies subject to effects of translation into the Group report-
ing currency in our quarterly and annual financial statements rose against
the euro over the reporting period. The weaker overall exchange rate for
the euro in the reporting period meant that the effects of translating other
currencies into the Group reporting currency boosted revenue growth. This
is why we state revenue growth in the “Revenue Performance” section on
an organic basis, i.e. adjusted for exchange rate effects, acquisitions and
divestments. In the financial year 2015, the USD exchange rate assumed for
budgeting purposes was USD 1.30 per EUR 1.00. The reporting date and
average exchange rates of major currencies for the Gerresheimer Group in
the financial year 2015 and the prior year are additionally set out in note
(4) of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ENERGY AND COMMODITY MARKET TRENDS

A significant portion of production costs relates to raw materials for the
manufacture of glass and plastic. We have substantial energy requirements on
an ongoing basis, mainly due to the energy-intensive combustion and melting
processes in our high-temperature furnaces. Any significant rise in energy
prices could have a considerable impact on the Gerresheimer Group’s results
of operations. Accordingly, we make use of the special compensation rule
for energy-intensive companies under section 64 of the German Renewable
Energy Act (EEG). The Group fully hedges against energy (electricity and gas)
price rises to absorb energy cost increases.

In the manufacture of plastic products, we are reliant on primary products
such as polyethylene, polypropylene and polystyrene. The prices of these
products largely depend on oil price trends.

As a manufacturer of high-quality pharmaceutical primary packaging, we
mainly use quartz sand and soda lime as raw materials for glass products,
along with various additives in relatively small quantities. \We procure these
basic products, which are freely available, from a range of suppliers.

When we sold our glass tubing business to Corning, we signed a ten-year
supply contract for borosilicate glass tubing to meet our long-term demand
for this important intermediary product for the converting business.

On the whole, we have negotiated escalation clauses in contracts with major
customers to largely offset increases in these prices. This means that while we
gained no major benefit from the lower oil price in the financial year 2015,
we will probably not be significantly impacted should the price of oil rebound.

Additional information on the Gerresheimer Group’s management of fluc-
tuations in energy and raw material prices is provided under the heading
“Energy and raw material prices” in the “Operational risks” section.
CHANGE IN THE REGULATORY
ENVIRONMENT

Policymakers, especially in European industrialized countries and the USA,
continue to attach great importance to proof of significant therapeutic
added value before new drugs are approved. For this reason, the competent
authorities usually carry out a detailed cost-benefit analysis before any new
drug can be released onto the market. This once again lent momentum to
generic drugs in industrialized countries in the financial year 2015.

Regulatory requirements tend to increase in quantity and scope from year
to year. While delivering major benefits to patients, this presents major
challenges for everyone in the market. Meeting and implementing regulatory
requirements led to production stoppages at some of our customers during
the first half of 2015, temporarily affecting demand for our pharmaceutical
packaging products.



36 GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT
» Business Environment
» Development of the Business

Overall, however, the financial year 2015 did not bring any material change
in the regulatory environment as regards the pharma markets relevant to
Gerresheimer. The heavy demands placed on our business also serve as a
tall barrier to entry for potential new competitors.

DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUSINESS

EFFECT OF THE ECONOMIC CONDITIONS ON
BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Business with the pharma and healthcare industry is especially important
to the Gerresheimer Group, as such business accounts for 84% of total
revenues. We achieved 6.8% revenue growth in the financial year 2015,
or 1.5% on an organic basis.

Financial year 2015 did not bring any material change in the regulatory
environment for the pharma markets relevant to us, and so there was no
significant regulatory impact on the growth of our business. However,
our business was again temporarily affected by the increasing quantity
and scope of regulatory requirements in the financial year, which led to
production stoppages at some of our customers. The more cyclical market
for high-quality cosmetic glass packaging showed a positive trend. Man-
ufacturers reported growth in perfume and care products in particular.
Demand in the market for life science research products remained at a
low level in the financial year 2015, and was strongly impacted by budget
restrictions in the USA.

Development of published guidance during the financial year 2015
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We primarily market specialized, high-quality primary packaging products and
drug-delivery systems made of glass and plastic. Our fully integrated production
offering sets us apart from our competitors. \We aim to be or become first or
second in the markets and product segments we serve over the long term.

ATTAINMENT OF GUIDANCE IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR
2015

We give our shareholders, customers and all other partners the opportunity to
assess our business development by publishing guidance at the beginning of
each financial year and adjusting this as needed over the course of the year.
Our guidance includes forward-looking statements on the development of
the organic revenue growth rate, adjusted EBITDA and capital expenditure.

A comparison of our guidance with the figures reported for the financial
year shows that our forecast of business developments in the financial year
2015 was accurate. The 1.5% organic revenue growth corresponded to our
guidance of an increase of between 1% and 3%. At constant exchange
rates and excluding Centor, the adjusted EBITDA of EUR 262.4m was within
the projected range of EUR 255m to EUR 265m. At 9.0%, the ratio of
capital expenditure to revenues was also within the estimated corridor of
9% to 10%, assuming constant exchange rates and without taking Centor
into account. Centor’s initial contribution to revenues and earnings — as
first presented on July 28, 2015 — since the acquisition was completed on
September 1, 2015 is not included in these figures.

The table below shows the changes in guidance over the course of the year:

Actual FY 2014

Guidance FY 2015
Feb. 11, 2015

Specification

of Guidance FY 2015
June 30, 2015 (Disposal of
Glass Tubing business)

Specification

of Guidance FY 2015
July 28, 2015
(Acquisition of Centor)

Specification

of Guidance FY 2015

Oct. 8, 2015

(Results publication Q3 2015)

Revenues

EUR 1,290.0m

+1% to +3% (organic
growth); equals revenues
of approximately

EUR 1,300m to

EUR 1,330m

Confirmation of Guidance
FY 2015 as given on
Feb. 11, 2015

Confirmation of Guidance
FY 2015 as given on
Feb. 11, 2015

Confirmation of Guidance
FY 2015 as given on
Feb. 11, 2015

EUR 256.1m
(at const. exchange
rates, excluding

EUR 255m to EUR 265m
(at constant exchange

Confirmation of Guidance
FY 2015 as given on

Confirmation of Guidance
FY 2015 as given on

Confirmation of Guidance
FY 2015 as given on

Adjusted EBITDA Triveni) rates) Feb. 11, 2015 Feb. 11, 2015 Feb. 11, 2015

9% to 10% of revenues Confirmation of Guidance Confirmation of Guidance Confirmation of Guidance
Capital (at constant exchange FY 2015 as given on FY 2015 as given on FY 2015 as given on
expenditure EUR 126.6m rates) Feb. 11, 2015 Feb. 11, 2015 Feb. 11, 2015

Expansion of
prognosis

The Guidance for FY 2015

remains unchanged, under the
assumption that the disposal

of the Glass Tubing business

will be closed by the end of

- 2015.

The closing of the acquisition
of Centor is expected for

Q4 2015; any Centor
contribution in Q4 2015
would increase the figures
accordingly.

The closing of the disposal

of the Glass Tubing business
continues to be expected by the
end of the calendar year 2015.

The Centor acquisition
was closed on
September 1, 2015; any
Centor contribution in
Q4 2015 will increase the
figures accordingly.

The closing of the disposal
of the Glass Tubing business
is expected by the end of
the financial year 2015.




GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT
» Development of the Business
» Revenue Performance

MANAGEMENT BOARD REVIEW OF BUSINESS
PERFORMANCE

The Gerresheimer Group performed well in the financial year 2015. Revenues
rose 6.8% to EUR 1,377.2m. This corresponds to organic growth of 1.5%. Our
pharma industry revenues thus continued to prove robust in the financial year
2015. At EUR 112.7m, net income was up significantly on the prior-year figure
(EUR 72.9m) in the financial year 2015. Adjusted net income amounted to
EUR 117.7m, compared with EUR 97.9m in the same period the year before.

REVENUE PERFORMANCE

Gerresheimer Group revenues increased by 6.8% or EUR 87.2m in the
financial year 2015 compared with the financial year 2014. Adjusted for
exchange rate effects, acquisitions and divestments, organic revenue growth
stood at 1.5%. The increase in revenues is mainly attributable to growth in
the Plastics & Devices Division. Similarly, the Primary Packaging Glass and
Life Science Research Divisions contributed to revenue growth.

in EUR m 2015 2014 Changein %
Revenues
Plastics & Devices 645.3 598.8 7.8
Primary Packaging Glass 651.0 622.2 4.6
Life Science Research 100.7 87.3 15.3
Subtotal 1,397.0 1,308.3 6.8
Intra-Group revenues -19.8 -18.3 -8.2
Total revenues 1,377.2 1,290.0 6.8

Revenues in the Plastics & Devices Division rose from EUR 598.8m in the
prior-year period to EUR 645.3m in 2015, equivalent to growth of 7.8%
(2.8% on an organic basis). Revenue growth in the financial year 2015
was mainly generated in the primary packaging business in Europe and
the medical systems business. Notable gains were made here with inhalers,
insulin pens and diabetes care products. As expected, tooling revenues
returned to normal levels after the record set in the prior year. Centor also
contributed to this positive revenue trend on a pro rata basis, generating a
EUR 31.2m share of revenues in the first three months of inclusion in the
Group following its consolidation in September 2015.

The Primary Packaging Glass Division generated revenues of EUR 651.0m in
the financial year 2015, compared with EUR 622.2m in the prior-year period.
This corresponds to revenue growth of 4.6% or an organic growth rate of
0.6% as against the prior year. The low organic revenue growth was mainly
attributable to the decline in demand in the USA, as already communicated
in the financial year 2014, which persisted in the first quarter of 2015 but
returned to a growth trend over the course of the financial year under review.
The drop in demand among some of our customers in the US market was
down to FDA requirements. We adapted to this development by deliberately
adjusting production capacity at a number of our US plants in the first half of
2015, notably on and around cost-intensive public holidays such as Christmas
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and New Year. Furthermore, as part of the portfolio optimization likewise
announced in our Annual Report 2014, we opted to close our glass plant in
Millville, USA, in the third quarter of 2015 and to bundle the vast majority
of our moulded glass products at our Chicago Heights plant. As planned,
the new furnace started operation following completion of repairs to, and
enlargement of, the furnace coupled with infrastructure improvements at
the Chicago Heights plant. Now that we have increased product quality, our
aim is to boost productivity.

In euro terms, the Life Science Research Division recorded revenue growth of
15.3% to EUR 100.7m in the financial year 2015. However, this figure was
significantly impacted by the EUR/USD exchange rate. On an organic basis,
revenues decreased slightly by 0.8%.

REVENUES BY ECONOMIC REGIONS

We generate the vast majority of Group revenues outside Germany. Inter-
national revenues came to EUR 1,052.4m or 76% of total revenues in the
financial year 2015. In the prior financial year, revenues generated interna-
tionally amounted to EUR 978.1m or 76% of total revenues. Europe and the
Americas remain Gerresheimer’s most important geographical sales regions.
As a growth region, the emerging markets also continue to be a focus in
terms of revenues. The percentage weighting shifted toward the Americas
region following the acquisition of Centor.

IMS Health updated its definition of emerging markets in the financial year
2015. As before, 21 countries are defined as emerging markets. Bangladesh,
Chile, Kazakhstan and the Philippines were added to the list. Thailand, Roma-
nia, Ukraine and Venezuela are no longer defined as emerging markets. We
have adjusted our reporting and restated the prior-year figures in line with
this expanded definition. Please see note (8) in the notes to the consolidated

-
T

financial statements.

in EUR m
600

500 ____471.8 467.0

400
3248 3119 3224
300 261.7
2242 2171
200
100 -
340 323
0
Europe Germany Americas Emerging Other
(without Germany) markets
2015 2014

Revenues in Europe (excluding Germany) rose by EUR 4.8m or 1.0% to
EUR 471.8m. Overall, there was a slight increase in European economic
output. This increase mainly reflects the positive revenue trend in the UK,
France, Belgium and the Netherlands, where we lifted revenues by 19.6%.
However, this was offset by a 33.8% year-on-year revenue decline in Spain.
At 34.3%, the share of revenues attributable to the Europe region (excluding
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Germany) was down slightly in the financial year under review, as against
36.2% in the prior year. Revenues rose by EUR 12.9m or 4.1% in Germany,
from EUR 311.9m in the prior year to EUR 324.8m in the financial year under
review. However, the German market’s share of Group revenues declined
slightly from 24.2% to 23.6%.

With a 23.4% share of Group revenues (2014: 20.3%), the Americas remain
an important market for the Gerresheimer Group. Centor’s full-year revenues
will be taken into account from the financial year 2016 onward, and so this
figure will continue to increase over the coming financial years. Due to the
presence of global pharma giants and the country’s demographic potential,
the USA in particular will remain a core region for our business activities.

Emerging market revenues accounted for some 16% of total Group revenues
in 2015 (2014: approximately 17%). We recorded added revenue growth
in India, China and Mexico. In contrast, revenues declined notably in Brazil.
The higher US share following the acquisition of Centor also contributed to
the percentage decline in the emerging markets.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Gerresheimer Group generated adjusted EBITDA of EUR 277.9m in the
financial year 2015, up 9.7% on the prior-year level. The adjusted EBITDA
margin came to 20.2%, higher than the prior-year figure of 19.6% and for
the first time exceeding 20%. At constant exchange rates, adjusted EBITDA
rose to EUR 271.9m. Also excluding the acquisition of Centor, adjusted
EBITDA amounted to EUR 262.4m.

in EUR m 2015 2014 Change in %
Adjusted EBITDA
Plastics & Devices 141.6 126.1 12.3
Primary Packaging Glass 143.7 134.0 7.2
Life Science Research 15.3 12.4 234
Subtotal 300.6 272.5 10.3
Head office/consolidation -22.7 -19.1 18.8
Total adjusted EBITDA 277.9 253.4 9.7

In the financial year 2015, the Plastics & Devices Division generated adjusted
EBITDA of EUR 141.6m, above the EUR 126.1m adjusted EBITDA recorded
in the prior year. The adjusted EBITDA margin rose from 21.1% in the prior
year to 21.9% in the financial year 2015. Alongside the overall increase
in revenues, this is mainly due to the positive mix effect of lower tooling
revenues and the inclusion of Centor in the Gerresheimer Group for the
first time.

At EUR 143.7m, adjusted EBITDA in the Primary Packaging Glass Division
was up EUR 9.7m on the prior year. The adjusted EBITDA margin rose from
21.5% to0 22.1%. This improved performance is largely attributable to the
moulded glass business in Europe and the converting business in the USA,
where margins were lifted by a corresponding increase in revenues.
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Adjusted EBITDA in the Life Science Research Division rose year on year to
EUR 15.3m in 2015. Compared with 14.2% in the financial year 2014, the
adjusted EBITDA margin in the financial year 2015 stood at 15.2%. This
increase mainly reflects the division’s improved productivity.

The head office expenses and consolidation items came to EUR 22.7m,
EUR 3.6m more than in the prior year. This is largely attributable to the
higher valuation of phantom stocks, the long-term share-price-based variable
cash remuneration, on the back of a significant increase in the share price
during the reporting period.

The table below shows the reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA to results of
operations:

in EUR m 2015 2014 Change
Adjusted EBITDA 277.9 253.4 24.5
Depreciation -86.3 -87.5 1.2
Adjusted EBITA 191.6 165.9 25.7
Sale of the glass tubing business 52.2 - 52.2
Thereof book gain on the sale 72.8 - 72.8
Impairment loss of
brand name Kimble/
Kontes" -15.7 - -15.7
Project-related and
other costs -4.9 - -4.9
Akquisition Centor -11.6 - -11.6
Thereof hedging of the
purchase price -4.5 - -4.5
Project-related costs -71 - -7.1
Portfolio optimization -15.9 -17.0 1.1
Thereof restructuring expenses -6.9 -4.4 -2.5
Portfolio adjustments -9.0 -12.6 3.6
One-off income and expenses? -0.4 -1.5 1.1
Total of one-off effects 24.3 -18.5 42.8
Amortization of fair value
adjustments? -22.3 -17.5 -4.8
Results of operations 193.6 129.9 63.7

" The impairment loss on the Kimble/Kontes brand is recognized in fair value adjustments.

2 The one-off income/expenses item consists of one-off items that cannot be taken as an indicator
of ongoing business. These comprise, for example, various reorganization and restructuring
measures that are not included in restructuring expenses under IFRS.

3 Amortization of fair value adjustments relates to the assets identified at fair value in connection
with the acquisitions of Gerresheimer Vaerloese in December 2005; Gerresheimer Regensburg in
January 2007; the pharma glass business of Comar Inc., USA, in March 2007; the establishment
of the Kimble Chase joint venture in July 2007; the acquisitions of Gerresheimer Zaragoza and
Gerresheimer Sao Paulo in January 2008; the acquisition of Vedat in March 2011; the acquisition
of Neutral Glass in April 2012; the acquisition of Triveni in December 2012; and the acquisition
of Centor in September 2015. Amortization of fair value adjustments relates to amortization of
identified intangible assets.
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Adjusted EBITA amounted to EUR 191.6m (2014: EUR 165.9m) based on
adjusted EBITDA of EUR 277.9m (2014: EUR 253.4m) less depreciation of
EUR 86.3m (2014: EUR 87.5m). This is reconciled to the results of opera-
tions (EUR 193.6m; 2014: EUR 129.9m) by adding one-off income totaling
EUR 24.3m (2014: deducting one-off expenses of EUR 18.5m) and deducting
amortization of fair value adjustments in the amount of EUR 22.3m (2014:
EUR 17.5m). These one-off effects are largely attributable to the sale of the
glass tubing business and the acquisition of Centor. As in the prior year, there
were also portfolio adjustments as well as other one-off income and expenses.

The glass tubing business was sold to Corning on November 2, 2015 for a
total price of EUR 196.0m before net working capital and net debt adjust-
ments. The Gerresheimer Group generated an accounting profit of EUR 72.8m
on this transaction. Expenses were also incurred in connection with the sale
of the glass tubing business. An impairment loss of EUR 15.7m that had
to be recognized on the fair value of the Kimble/Kontes brand as well as
project-related and other costs amounting to EUR 4.9m.

One-off expenses from the acquisition of Centor totaled EUR 11.6m in 2015.
Of this figure, EUR 4.5m relates to a currency hedge for the purchase price,
which was to be paid in US dollars. The purchase price for the acquisition
of Centor was USD 725m, part of which was payable in euros and part in
US dollars. When the sale and purchase agreement was signed, a forward
exchange contract was entered into to fix the USD purchase price at a set
USD/EUR exchange rate for the period from signing the sale and purchase
agreement to the expected payment of the purchase price of EUR 655.5m
in order to be able to take out a corresponding bridging loan. Another
EUR 7.1m was attributable to project costs, primarily consulting fees for
the due diligence conducted, the negotiations and the lawyers engaged.
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Portfolio optimization in the financial year 2015 amounted to a total of
EUR 15.9m (2014: EUR 17.0m). This item includes restructuring expenses,
mainly in connection with the previously announced permanent closure of the
plant in Millville, USA. Also included are impairment losses of EUR 9.0m from
the divisional streamlining and optimization already announced.

Amortization of fair value adjustments rose by EUR 4.8m in the financial year
under review. This figure reflects two offsetting effects: On the one hand,
amortization relating to past acquisitions is lower since this is reaching zero
based on the applicable useful life assumptions and, on the other hand,
amortization was negatively impacted — but only in the fourth quarter — by
the acquisition of Centor, which was completed in September 2015.

RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED

Return on capital employed (ROCE) is implemented as a profitability metric
at Group level and indicates how efficiently we put the capital employed in
the business to work. It is a key medium- to long-term target indicator for
the Gerresheimer Group. ROCE is defined as adjusted EBITA over average
capital employed, which is calculated as total assets less non-interest-bearing
liabilities and cash and cash equivalents.

Calculated on the basis of the published figures from the consolidated
financial statements (as the average of the reporting date amounts for the
prior year and the year under review), ROCE was 12.9% in 2015 and 14.0%
in 2014. The ROCE for the financial year 2015 tends toward underreporting,
mainly as a result of the acquisition of Centor and its first-time inclusion
in the fourth quarter. As a result, a portion of adjusted EBITA is only taken
into account for one quarter in the numerator, whereas the figures in the
denominator impact the indicator in full.
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INCOME STATEMENT: KEY ITEMS

2015 in % of 2014 in % of

in EUR m revenues in EUR m revenues
Revenues 1,377.2 1,290.0
Cost of sales -972.2 -70.6 -933.9 -72.4
Selling expenses -170.7 -12.4 -135.7 -10.5
General admini-
strative expenses -91.3 -6.6 -86.4 -6.7
Restructuring
expenses -6.9 -0.5 -4.4 -0.3
Other operating
income and
expenses 57.5 4.2 0.3 -
Results of
operations 193.6 14.1 129.9 10.1
Net finance
expense? -34.6 -2.5 -30.5 2.4
Income tax -46.4 -3.4 -26.5 -2.1
Net income 112.7 8.2 72.9 5.7
Attributable to
non-controlling
interests 8.4 6.5
Attributable
to equity
holders of the
parent 104.3 66.4

" Net finance expense comprises interest income and expenses in relation to the net financial debt
of the Gerresheimer Group. It also includes net interest expenses for pension provisions together
with exchange rate effects from financing activities and from related derivative hedges.

Gerresheimer AG ANNUAL REPORT 2015

FUNCTION COSTS

Cost of sales rose by 4.1% to EUR 972.2m (2014: EUR 933.9m). This rise
reflected increased personnel expenses in line with normal pay trends and
expenditure for repairs to, and enlargement of, the furnace as well as in-
frastructure improvements at the Chicago Heights plant. In contrast, as a
percentage of revenues, cost of sales declined by 1.8 percentage points.
At 12.4%, selling expenses rose by 1.9 percentage points as a percentage
of revenues. This is attributable to significantly higher amortization of fair
value adjustments following the acquisition of Centor. As a percentage of
revenues, administrative expenses were on a par with the financial year 2014.
In absolute figures, administrative expenses increased by EUR 4.9m, mainly
due to the higher valuation of phantom stocks on the back of a significant
increase in the share price during the reporting period.

Net other operating income and expenses rose by EUR 57.2m to EUR 57.5m
in the financial year under review. The increase is primarily attributable to
the EUR 72.8m in income realized on the sale of the glass tubing business
to Corning in November 2015. One-off expenses in connection with the
sale of the glass tubing business and the acquisition of Centor had an
offsetting effect.

NET FINANCE EXPENSE

The net finance expense for the financial year 2015 was EUR 34.6m, EUR 4.1m
higher than the prior-year figure of EUR 30.5m. This increase was due in
particular to the amortization of bank commissions amounting to EUR 3.0m
in the financial year 2015 from the overall financing redeemed in June 2015
and the bridging loan taken out in connection with the acquisition of Centor,
which was also redeemed as of the end of the year. The net finance expense
also includes EUR 3.5m from the currency hedge for the payment of the
purchase price for Centor. Lower pension interest (EUR 1.6m) had an offsetting
effect. In addition, interest income rose by EUR 1.4m as against the prior year.

INCOME TAXES

Income taxes stood at EUR 46.4m, compared with EUR 26.5m in the prior
year. As of November 30, 2015, the effective tax rate was 29.2%, slightly
higher than the forecast rate of 29.0% as well as above the prior-year
effective tax rate of 26.7%.

The tax audit for the German tax group was completed in the financial year
2015 for the financial years 2009 up to and including 2012. Appropriate
provision was made in the financial year 2015 for the resulting additional
tax expense. In the prior year, the Group tax rate was reduced in particular
by different foreign tax rates as well as the effects of changes to the tax
rates in Denmark and Spain. Adjusted for these one-off effects, the tax rate
for the financial year 2014 would also have been 29.9%.



GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT
» Results of Operations
» Net Assets

NET INCOME AND ADJUSTED NET INCOME

The Gerresheimer Group recorded net income of EUR 112.7m as of Novem-
ber 30, 2015, a significant increase of EUR 39.8m on the prior-year figure.

a1

PROPOSAL FOR APPROPRIATION OF RETAINED
EARNINGS (PROPOSED DIVIDEND)

At the Annual General Meeting on April 28, 2016, the Management Board
and Supervisory Board of Gerresheimer AG will propose that a dividend of

in EUR m 2015 2014 Change EUR 0.85 per share be paid for the financial year 2015 (2014: EUR 0.75
A i 112.7 72.9 39.8  Pershare). This represents a total dividend distribution of EUR 26.7m and
Amortization of fair value an increase of 13% against the prior-year dividend. The dividend ratio
adjustments 52.2 - 52.2  amounts to 25% of adjusted net income after non-controlling interests.
Related tax effect :16.8 - 168 This distribution is in line with our dividend policy of distributing to our
i e il el e - 118 shareholders between 20% and 30% of adjusted net income after non-con-
Related tax effect 3.9 - 3.9 N | )
berttalio optimization e . — trolling |ntelrests, depending on our operating performance. F.ur.thermo.re, a
Relted tax affect 2o L. 4 proposal will be made to carry forward the Company’s remaining retained
One-off income and expenses 04 a5 96 earnings of EUR 64.8m. In this way, Gerresheimer shareholders will this year
el i 0.2 0.5 0.5  once again participate in the business success of the Gerresheimer Group.
Amortization of fair value
adjustments -22.3 -17.5 -4.8
Related tax effect 7.0 5.5 15 NET ASSETS
One-off effects in the
financial result -6.5 - -6.5
Related tax effect 2.1 - 2.1 BALANCE SHEET
Tax special effects 1.2 03 0.9  The Gerresheimer Group’s net assets changed as follows in the financial
Related tax effect -0.6 -0.5 -0.1 year 2015:
Adjusted net income 117.7 97.9 19.8
Attributable to Nov. 30, Nov. 30, Change
non-controlling interests 8.4 6.5 1.9 Assets in EUR m 2015 2014 in %"
Amortization of fair value Intangible assets, property, plant,
adjustments -2.5 0.9 -1.6 equipment and investment
Related tax effect 0.2 0.1 0.1 property 1,862.9 1,140.6 63.3
Adjusted net income Investment accounted for using
attributable to non- the equity method 0.2 0.1 175.6
controlling interests 10.7 7.3 34 Other non-current assets 19.4 13.0 48.5
Adjusted income after Non-current assets 1,882.5 1,153.7 63.2
no.n-controlllmg interests 107.0 90.6 16.4 S 186.4 193.7 Y
ﬁdétsée;ctr;ertngg?git;:gﬁ;I;are Trade receivables 219.0 208.5 5.1
interests 3.41 2.89 Other current assets 132.0 100.0 32.0
Current assets 537.4 502.2 7.0
Total assets 2,419.9 1,655.9 46.1
Adjusted net income (defined as net income, including net income attrib-
utable to non-controlling interests, before non-cash amortization of fair Equity and Liabilities Nov. 30, Nov. 30, Change
value adjustments, the non-recurring effect of restructuring expenses and in EU_R i _ 2015 2014 in %°
the balance of one-off income/expense inclusive of related tax effects) came :E:t:':gstas"d pen e aling 698.1 604:0 155
to EUR 117.7m in the financial year 2015, compared with EUR 97.9m in Non-current provisions 165.0 1752 58
the prior year. Adjusted earnings per share after net income attributable  Financial liabilities 740.8 386.1 91.9
to non-controlling interests was thus EUR 3.41, compared with EUR 2.89 Other non-current liabilities 146.8 34.4 326.7
in the prior year. Non-current liabilities 1,052.6 595.7 76.7
Financial liabilities 249.6 124.2 101.0
Trade payables 160.9 125.5 28.3
Other current provisions
and liabilities 258.6 206.1 25.5
Current liabilities 669.2 455.8 46.8
Total equity and liabilities 2,419.9 1,655.9 46.1

" The changes have been calculated on a EUR k basis.
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Total assets in the Gerresheimer Group rose by EUR 764.0m or 46.1% year
on year to EUR 2,419.9m as of November 30, 2015. This rise was mainly
influenced by the acquisition of Centor and the inclusion of its assets and
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet for the first time as of Novem-
ber 30, 2015. The sale of the glass tubing business had an offsetting effect.

BALANCE SHEET STRUCTURE AND RATIOS

Non-current assets rose by EUR 728.8m, or 63.2%, to EUR 1,882.5m
(2014: EUR 1,153.7m). Compared with the prior year, non-current assets
increased to 77.8% of total assets (2014: 69.7%). Current assets amounted
to EUR 537.4m as of the balance sheet date, up 7.0% on the prior-year
figure (EUR 502.2m). They thus account for 22.2% of total assets (2014:
30.3%). The main changes on the assets side of the balance sheet relate
to the significant increase in intangible assets following the acquisition of
Centor, as well as higher deferred tax assets and an increase in cash and
cash equivalents.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, and investment prop-
erty amounted to EUR 1,862.9m as of the balance sheet date (2014:
EUR 1,140.6m). The increase is primarily attributable to the acquisition of
Centor. Centor’s intangible assets amounted to EUR 766.7m as of the Novem-
ber 30, 2015 reporting date and mainly related to goodwill (EUR 293.7m) and
customer bases (EUR 468.8m). Centor also had property, plant and equipment
in the amount of EUR 42.0m as of the reporting date, most of which related to
plant and machinery (EUR 32.9m) and land and buildings (EUR 6.1m). The sale
of the glass tubing business had an offsetting effect and reduced intangible
assets by EUR 39.2m and property, plant and equipment by EUR 66.1m. Capital
expenditure on intangible assets and property, plant and equipment amounted
to EUR 125.8m (2014: EUR 126.6m) and was reduced by depreciation and
amortization of EUR 86.3m (2014: EUR 87.5m), amortization of fair value
adjustments of EUR 22.3m (2014: EUR 17.5m) and impairment losses on the
fair value of the Kimble/Kontes brand of EUR 15.7m. Impairment losses totaled
EUR 6.3m (2014: EUR 12.6m) and are attributable to the portfolio adjustments
already communicated as well as to further standardization within the Group.

Other non-current assets rose from EUR 13.0m in the prior year to EUR 19.4m
as of November 30, 2015. These primarily comprise deferred tax assets in
the amount of EUR 8.1m.
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CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories and trade receivables increased slightly by 0.8% compared with
the prior year. Inventories came to EUR 186.4m as of the balance sheet date
(2014: EUR 193.7m). Trade receivables amounted to EUR 219.0m (2014:
EUR 208.5m). Inventories and trade receivables mainly increased in line with
revenue growth. Inventories and trade receivables made up 16.8% of total
assets as of the balance sheet date, compared with 24.3% in the prior year.

EQUITY

Gerresheimer Group equity, including non-controlling interests, rose by
EUR 93.7m to EUR 698.1m. This increase is attributable to the positive
impact of net income, which more than offset distributions in the amount
of EUR 32.3m. In addition, equity was lifted by actuarial gains (after taxes)
of EUR 2.3m on the remeasurement of pension provisions as a result of the
current interest rate trend. The equity ratio was 28.8% as of November 30,
2015, compared with 36.5% as of the end of the financial year 2014.

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities came to EUR 1,052.6m (2014: EUR 595.7m). This
represents an increase of EUR 456.9m on the prior year. Non-current provisions
were down 5.8% on the prior-year figure, primarily due to the decrease in
pension provisions following the sale of the glass tubing business as well as the
slightly higher discount rate. Non-current financial liabilities rose significantly
year on year and amounted to EUR 740.8m as of November 30, 2015 (2014:
EUR 386.1m). This is the result of Gerresheimer AG's successful EUR 425.0m
debt issue in November 2015, to finance the acquisition of Centor. The
increase in other non-current liabilities is mainly attributable to the significantly
higher deferred tax liabilities following the acquisition of Centor.

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current liabilities amounted to EUR 669.2m as of the balance sheet date,
up 46.8% on the prior year. They thus make up 27.7% of total equity and
liabilities (2014: 27.5%). Trade payables rose to EUR 160.9m due to the first-
time inclusion of Centor (2014: EUR 125.5m). Other current provisions and
liabilities came to EUR 258.6m as of the reporting date, after EUR 206.1m
in the prior year. The increase largely reflects the higher tax liabilities in
connection with the sale of the glass tubing business.
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Assets Equity and liabilities

EUR 2,419.9m EUR 1,655.9m EUR 2,419.9m EUR 1,655.9m
20% 5
Liabilities 2 |
Liabilities
. . - A% 31%
A 69% Financial liabilities Financial liabilities
Assets Assets
13%
10% Provisions
L ) 12% Inventories e
8% Inventories ST 29% 36%
11% Receivables e Equity Equity

4%
Cash and cash equivalents

4%
Cash and cash equivalents

Nov. 30, 2015 Nov. 30, 2014

NET WORKING CAPITAL

The Gerresheimer Group’s net working capital stood at EUR 213.7m as
of November 30, 2015, a decrease of EUR 19.4m compared with Novem-
ber 30, 2014.

Nov. 30, Nov. 30,
in EUR m 2015 2014
Inventories 186.4 193.7
Trade receivables 219.0 208.5
Trade payables 160.9 125.5
Prepayments received 30.8 43.6
Net working capital 213.7 233.1

Expressed as a percentage of revenues in the past twelve months, average net
working capital amounted to 19.0% as of November 30, 2015, unchanged
as against November 30, 2014. As of the reporting date, net working capital
equated to 15.5% of revenues in the past twelve months. This low figure
is mainly due to two one-off effects. Firstly, more finished inventory stock
was sold off at both locations following the closure of our plant in Millville
and the furnace overhaul in Chicago Heights. Stock levels at the Chicago
Heights plant tended to be lower overall since it only resumed production
at the end of the year. Trade payables also tended to be slightly higher in
the USA as of the reporting date. Secondly, the sale of the glass tubing
business also led to a disposal of net working capital for glass tubes. As a
result, this indicator is positively impacted by the inclusion of eleven months’
worth of revenues for this area. In contrast, net working capital is reported
without the glass tubing business as of the reporting date. Overall, the two
effects lifted net working capital by almost two percentage points as of the
November 30, 2015 reporting date.

Nov. 30, 2015 Nov. 30, 2014

OFF-BALANCE-SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

There were operating lease obligations totaling EUR 43.2m as of the bal-
ance sheet date (2014: EUR 53.0m). These relate to building, machinery,
vehicle and IT-related operating leases and rentals. There were also minor
guarantees to lessors.

INFLUENCE OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

No accounting policies or related accounting options were applied in the
2015 consolidated financial statements that differ from prior years, and that,
if applied differently, would have had a material effect on the Group’s net
assets, financial position and results of operations. Information on the use
of estimates and on the assumptions and judgments applied is provided in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

v
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FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

PRINCIPLES AND OBIJECTIVES OF FINANCIAL
MANAGEMENT

The control and optimization of the Gerresheimer Group’s finances are
primarily the responsibility of Group Treasury at Gerresheimer AG. Our
overriding objective is to safeguard liquidity at all times through central
procurement of funding as well as active control of currency and interest
rate risk. We ensure an appropriate level of funding on an ongoing basis
through rolling liquidity planning and central cash management.

In order to institutionalize decision and control processes in connection with
safeguarding liquidity, financial planning and associated risk management,
the Management Board has appointed an Investment Committee. Compris-
ing the CFO as well as the heads of Controlling, Mergers & Acquisitions and
Treasury, the committee normally meets on a quarterly basis. The core remit
of the Investment Committee is to discuss and monitor relevant financial
operating conditions for the Gerresheimer Group. Potential changes in
extraneous factors in line with current market projections are appraised
along with the financing situation and strategic growth options. All ideas
and upcoming projects with a major financial impact are combined, as-
sessed to determine whether they are fundable and re-examined from
a risk management standpoint. This means we have an additional early
warning and control mechanism to supplement universal application of
the dual-control principle.

As we operate worldwide, we use a range of tools to ensure effective
financial management. In this way, we minimize any negative impact of
default, currency and interest rate risk on the Gerresheimer Group’s net
assets, financial position and results of operations or cash flows.

The maximum credit risk from receivables faced by the Gerresheimer Group is
the aggregate carrying amount of the receivables. We extend trade credit in
the ordinary course of business and carry out regular assessments for specific
financial status levels (credit checks). Bad debt allowances are recognized
for doubtful receivables. Specific customer credit risk is measured using
past collection experience and other information such as credit reports. We
counter default risk by restricting contractual partners to those of good to
very good credit standing. This is based on national and international agency
ratings and rigorous observance of risk limits stipulated under trade credit
insurance or internally.
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Our international focus means that we conduct many transactions in foreign
currency. To counter the associated risk that exchange rates may move
adversely from our perspective, we use forward exchange contracts to hedge
cash flows from unfulfilled foreign currency orders. Orders, receivables and
payables are hedged as a rule with forward exchange contracts on inception.
To counter interest rate risk, Group Treasury at Gerresheimer AG monitors
interest rate trends on an ongoing basis and takes out corresponding interest
rate hedges as needed.

Safeguarding the Gerresheimer Group’s liquidity while allowing sufficient
reserves for special eventualities is an integral part of ongoing liquidity
management. Intra-Group cash pooling and intercompany lending permit
efficient use of liquidity surpluses at Group companies to meet the cash
needs of others. Sufficient cash pool lines and intercompany loans meant that
there were neither financing nor liquidity shortfalls in the financial year 2015.

FINANCING INSTRUMENTS

There are currently three main components to our overall financing. First,
there is @ EUR 300m bond issued on May 19, 2011 at a price of 99.4%, with
a 5.0% coupon and seven-year term ending in spring 2018.

Second, a syndicated loan in the form of a EUR 450m revolving credit facility
with a five-year term to maturity was signed in a refinancing arrangement on
June 9, 2015. On June 15, 2015, this replaced the previous line of credit taken
out in March 2011. The financial covenant underlying and applicable to the
current syndicated loan is the ratio of net financial debt to adjusted EBITDA
(EBITDA leverage). The revolving credit facility carries a basic rate of interest
equal to EURIBOR for the drawing period plus a margin of between 0.60%
and 1.30% depending on fulfillment of the EBITDA leverage covenant and
plus a drawdown commission in line with the current loan status.

Gerresheimer AG took out a EUR 550m bridging loan with a maximum term
of twelve months — plus an extension option for an additional six months —
on September 1, 2015 in connection with the acquisition of Centor U.S.
Holding Inc. This bridging loan was repaid in November 2015 following
Gerresheimer AG's successful EUR 425m debt issue and pro rata from the
proceeds of the sale of the glass tubing business. The Gerresheimer AG debt
issue signed on November 2, 2015 and paid out on November 10, 2015
comprises one five-year tranche in the amount of EUR 189.5m, one seven-year
tranche in the amount of EUR 210m and one ten-year tranche in the amount
of EUR 25.5m. Most of the individual terms offer fixed interest and some
variable interest.

Our foreign subsidiaries also have finance in the shape of approved bilateral
credit lines in an amount equivalent to EUR 14.2m.
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND CREDIT FACILITIES

In the financial year 2015, the Gerresheimer Group replaced the old overall
financing arrangement from 2011 with a EUR 450m revolving credit facility.
In addition, a EUR 550m bridging loan was taken out to finance the acqui-
sition of Centor in September 2015. This was repaid in full, largely from the
EUR 425m debt issue in November 2015 and the remaining amount from the
proceeds generated by Gerresheimer in the sale of its glass tubing business
on November 2, 2015 (see also the “Financing Instruments” section).

Net financial debt developed as follows:

Nov. 30, Nov. 30,

in EUR m 2015 2014
Financial debt
Syndicated facilities

Long-term loan (until June 15, 2015)" - 91.4

Revolving credit facility (until June 15, 2015)" - 86.0

Revolving credit facility (since June 15, 2015)" 232.8
Total syndicated facilities 232.8 177.4
Senior notes — euro bond 300.0 300.0
Bonded loans 425.0 -
Local borrowings? 7.6 8.6
Finance lease liabilities 5.8 5.7
Total financial debt 971.2 491.7
Cash and cash equivalents 93.7 67.9
Net financial debt 877.5 423.8

The exchange rates used for the translation of US dollar loans to euros were as follows: As of
November 30, 2014: EUR 1.00/USD 1.2483; as of November 30, 2015: EUR 1.00/USD 1.0579.

Net financial debt increased considerably year on year and amounted to
EUR 877.5m as of November 30, 2015 after EUR 423.8m in the prior year. This
is primarily attributable to the financing of the Centor acquisition in September
2015. According to the credit line agreement as of November 30, 2015, adjusted
EBITDA leverage was 2.9 as of the balance sheet date, compared with the
prior-year figure of 1.7.

The revolving syndicated loan (credit line of EUR 450m) was drawn down by
EUR 232.8m as of November 30, 2015. Drawings on the old overall financing
arrangement amounted to EUR 177.4m as of November 30, 2014. Of the revolv-
ing credit facility, EUR 217.2m was available to us for investments, acquisitions
and other operational requirements as of November 30, 2015.
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BUSINESS DISPOSALS AND ACQUISITIONS

The agreement on the acquisition of all shares in Centor U.S. Holding Inc. was
signed on July 27, 2015. The transaction was completed on September 1,
2015, and the company was thus included in the consolidated financial state-
ments of Gerresheimer AG for the first time in the fourth quarter of 2015.
Based in Perrysburg, Ohio, Centor is the market leader in plastic packaging for
oral prescription medication in the US end-consumer market. The USD 725m
debt-free purchase price was financed in its entirety out of borrowing.

On June 29, 2015, Gerresheimer signed an agreement on the sale of its glass
tubing business to Corning Inc. The transaction was completed on November 2,
2015. The business area employs around 300 people in Pisa, Italy, and at
the Vineland location in the USA. To meet Gerresheimer’s high glass tube
demand, the two parties also signed a ten-year supply contract for glass tubes.
In addition, the two companies founded Corning Pharmaceutical Packaging
LLC, Wilmington, USA, to drive forward innovation in the pharmaceutical
glass packaging market. Gerresheimer AG indirectly holds 25% of the shares
in this newly established company.

2) of the notes to the consolidated
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ANALYSIS OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For further information, please see note (2)
financial statements.

Gerresheimer undertook capital expenditure on property, plant and equip-
ment and intangible assets as follows in the financial year 2015:

in EUR m 2015 2014 Changein %
Plastics & Devices 36.0 63.5 -43.3
Primary Packaging Glass 87.0 60.4 44.0
Life Science Research 1.7 2.1 -19.0
Head office 1.1 0.6 83.3
Total capital expenditure 125.8 126.6 -0.6
Depreciation 86.3 87.5 -1.4
Reinvestment ratio in % 145.8 144.7 -

Our capital expenditure in the course of this financial year focused on con-
struction and expansion as well as measures to increase plant availability. As
in prior years, projects to increase plant safety, improve quality and ensure
compliance with environmental regulations were carried out as planned.
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Capital expenditure in the Plastics & Devices Division centered on making
further additions to production capacity at our site in Horsovsky Tyn, Czech
Republic. Investments were also made to expand production space at our
plant in Peachtree, USA.

Alongside routine general furnace overhauls, capital expenditure in the Primary
Packaging Glass Division primarily focused on repairing and enlarging the
furnace in Chicago Heights, USA, as well as continuing implementation of
the vials machine strategy in the converting business. As in prior years, we
also invested in molds, tools and modernization.

The reinvestment ratio (capital expenditure to depreciation) was at 145.8%
(2014: 144.7%).

Capital expenditure is broken down by economic region as follows:

OPERATING CASH FLOW
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in EUR m 2015 2014
Adjusted EBITDA 277.9 253.4
Change in net working capital 24.9 -23.2
Capital expenditure -125.8 -126.6
Operating cash flow 177.0 103.6
Net interests paid -27.5 -20.6
Net taxes paid -38.8 -41.6
Pension benefits paid -12.8 -14.2
Other -18.8 6.1
Free cash flow before acquisitions 79.1 33.3
Acquisitions -475.4 -
Financing activity 418.8 -41.1
Changes in cash and cash equivalents 22,5 -7.8

At EUR 177.0m, operating cash flow was up EUR 73.4m on the prior-year

in EUR m figure (EUR 103.6m). The increase is primarily attributable to the clear im-
60 provement in net working capital as well as the higher operating income.
20 44.7
40 388 CASH FLOW STATEMENT
30 i 273289 2l 27.8
23.1
20 in EUR m 2015 2014
10 Cash flow from operating activities 203.8 158.3
0 Cash flow from investing activities -600.1 -125.0
Earone Gy L i Cash flow from financing activities 418.8 -41.1
(without Germany) markets Changes in cash and cash equivalents 22,5 -7.8
Effect of exchange rate changes on
AT 200 cash and cash equivalents 3.3 2.6
Cash and cash equivalents at the
From a regional perspective, 35.6% of capital expenditure in the financial beginning of the period 67.9 73.1
year 2015 was accounted for by the Americas (2014: 24.6%), 18.4% by  Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the period 93.7 67.9

emerging markets (2014: 22.0%), 24.3% by Europe (excluding Germany;
2014: 30.6%) and 21.7% by Germany (2014: 22.8%).

The investments in Europe (excluding Germany) related mainly to capacity
expansion measures in the Primary Packaging Glass Division as well as a
new production building in the Plastics & Devices Division. In the Americas,
capital expenditure focused primarily on the furnace repair and enlargement
in Chicago Heights.

Cash inflows from operating activities rose by 28.7% to EUR 203.8m in
the financial year 2015 due to both the increase in net income and the
significantly improved net working capital.

The net cash outflow from investing activities was EUR 600.1m, considerably
higher than the prior-year figure of EUR 125.0m. Capital expenditure on
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment consumed EUR 125.8m,
a slightly higher amount than in the prior year (EUR 125.6m). In the financial
year 2015, EUR 650.5m (net of cash received) was paid out for the acquisition
of Centor. We also recognized cash received in connection with divestments
of EUR 175.2m in the financial year 2015, attributable in full to the sale of
the glass tubing business.
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The net cash inflow from financing activities in the reporting year amounted
to EUR 418.8m (2014: net cash outflow of EUR 41.1m). This was mainly due
to the successful EUR 425.0m debt issue in November 2015, partially offset
by distributions to third parties in the amount of EUR 32.4m.

The Gerresheimer Group had EUR 93.7m in cash and cash equivalents as
of November 30, 2015 (2014: EUR 67.9m). As of the end of the report-
ing period, Gerresheimer additionally had at its disposal a EUR 450.0m
revolving syndicated loan, which was drawn down by EUR 232.8m as of
November 30, 2015. The remaining amount is available to Gerresheimer
for purposes such as capital expenditure, acquisitions and other operational
requirements.

MANAGEMENT BOARD’S OVERALL ASSESSMENT OF
THE BUSINESS SITUATION

Global economic growth weakened slightly in the financial year 2015. For the
Gerresheimer Group, too, the financial year 2015 was a year of challenges,
mostly relating to the furnace enlargement in Chicago that impacted the
primary packaging business in the USA. In addition, the sale of the glass
tubing business and the acquisition of Centor were complex projects in 2015.

At EUR 125.8m, capital expenditure was down slightly on the prior-year
figure. According to the credit line agreement as of November 30, 2015,
leverage — the ratio of interest-bearing net financial debt to adjusted EBITDA —
stood at 2.9, up on the prior-year figure (1.7). Leverage was reduced by the
sale of the glass tubing business but increased by the acquisition of Centor.
Our net asset position remains very solid. Equity and non-current liabilities
provided 93.0% coverage of non-current assets (2014: 104.0%). The equity
ratio declined against the prior-year figure of 36.5% to 28.8%. However,
this is still a very good figure.
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NON-FINANCIAL SUCCESS FACTORS
OF THE GERRESHEIMER GROUP

EMPLOYEES

OUR HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT PRIORITIES

We are proud of our workforce. They make a crucial contribution to our
Company’s successful and sustained forward development. They show
commitment and passion and possess the knowledge and expertise that let
us continue to push ahead successfully. The goal of our human resources
activities is to provide the best possible springboard for our profitable growth.
We achieve this by having the right people in the right place and the right
jobs at the right time. To this end, we support our employees and invest in
their personal, skill-based and professional development.

The past financial year brought with it a number of major changes. In pursuit
of our corporate strategy, we are increasingly focusing on packaging solutions
for pharma customers. Within this framework, we sold our glass tubing
business to Corning in 2015. At the same time, we significantly expanded our
pharmaceutical primary packaging business with the acquisition of Centor.
This means that we lost employees at our locations in Pisa, Italy, and Vineland,
USA, while gaining new employees at our locations in Berlin and Perrysburg,
both in Ohio, USA. Our task is to smoothly integrate the different nationalities
and cultures as well as to steer the process of change, ultimately in order to
promote our Group-wide concept of “ONE Gerresheimer”. This is a special
challenge, notably in light of our global and decentralized organization. At
the same time, it offers numerous opportunities to harness the diversity of
our workforce in our day-to-day operations and tap into the rich seam of
different talent and skills with a view to boosting customer satisfaction. In
all of this, we aim not merely to nurture a working environment conducive
to sound performance, but to actively and consciously draw on diversity as a
way of further enhancing the success and competitive edge of our business.
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WORKFORCE STRUCTURE

The Gerresheimer Group had a workforce of 10,684 employees as of the end
of the financial year 2015. That represents 412, or 3.7%, fewer than as of the
end of the financial year 2014. Reasons include the sale of the glass tubing
business numbering 302 employees with effect from November 2, 2015, as
well as the permanent closure of our plant in Millville with 238 employees.
This reduction in the workforce was partly offset by the acquisition of Centor,
with a total of 209 employees, with effect from September 1, 2015. We
are an industrial enterprise. That is reflected in the 75.2% (2014: 75.9%)
proportion of hourly-paid employees.
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EMPLOYEES BY DIVISION

The sale of the glass tubing business with the two locations in Pisa, Italy,
and Vineland, USA, as well as the acquisition of Centor have also resulted in
changes in the size of our divisions with regard to their workforce. Employee
numbers by division were similarly affected by the permanent closure of the
moulded glass plant in Millville, USA, in the third quarter of 2015. Another
main reason for the reduction in employee numbers is ongoing investment
in the automation of our converting locations in China. These factors meant
that the Primary Packaging Glass Division had 5,143 employees (2014:
5,736 employees) as of the financial year-end, representing a decrease
of 593 employees compared with the prior financial year. The number of
employees in our Plastics & Devices Division stayed more or less constant.
This division had 4,462 employees in the prior year and a total of 4,687
at the end of the financial year 2015. Alongside the acquisition of Centor,
capacity expansion at our locations in Pfreimd, Germany, and Horsovsky Tyn,
Czech Republic, were notable in adding to the workforce. The number of
employees in our Life Science Research Division, at 758 (2014: 794), showed
little change relative to the prior year. A total of 96 employees (2014: 104)
worked in the head office as of November 30, 2015. Of these, 88 (2014:
89) were on the payroll of Gerresheimer AG as of the balance sheet date.
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EMPLOYEES BY REGION

We will continue to pursue our strategy of producing in the regions where our
markets are located. As a German company with a long-standing tradition
in our country, we are therefore both pleased and proud to once again
report a slight increase in our workforce in Germany. This reflects a clear
commitment to Germany and our roots. \We have a workforce totaling 3,471
(2014: 3,456) employees at our eleven German locations. The number of
employees across all remaining European locations has decreased to 1,856
(2014: 1,914). This is mainly due to the sale of our glass tubing plant in Pisa,
Italy. Following a decrease in the workforce at our American plants, triggered
by capacity adjustments in the financial year before last, the number of
employees there once again fell in the year under review, standing at 1,332
as of November 30, 2015. This is due to the closure of our moulded glass
plant in Millville, USA, and the sale of our glass tubing plant in Vineland,
USA, which were only partly offset by the acquisition of the Centor locations
in Berlin and Perrysburg, both in Ohio, USA. The number of employees in
emerging markets similarly decreased, to 4,025 (2014: 4,217).
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DIVERSITY

It is a matter of course for us at Gerresheimer that we treat all our employees
equally and foster an environment free of discrimination. In line with this
commitment, we fill vacancies exclusively on the basis of the qualifications
required. This means women and men of comparable aptitude have the
same career opportunities with us. We need a well-trained and motivated
workforce. It is essential for us to attract qualified staff and leverage the
potential of all employees. Therefore, we do not wish, and cannot afford
to, forego the potential of well-qualified women. Consequently, we are
investing more and more in the promotion of women in order to raise
their proportion of the workforce on an ongoing basis. To this end, we
deploy Company-specific measures such as flexible working hours, part-time
working programs and home offices. We place the focus here on individual
measures rather than global programs. Frequently, we are confronted with
the challenge that typically many of the activities in an industrial enterprise
are physically highly demanding and only a small number of women apply
for factory-floor vacancies. As a result, the proportion of women in our
global workforce stands at 35.5%. The proportion of women in the first
two levels of management in the year under review was 11.2% (2014:
11.3%). We are working to further improve these figures and increase the
proportion of women in management positions.
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Similarly, we deploy a range of measures to boost the proportion of women
in manufacturing occupations as well as encouraging girls and young women
— not just at “Girls’ Day” events — to opt for apprenticeships in technical
fields. Our experience in this regard has been positive without exception and
we continue to work toward further increasing the proportion of women
in technical occupations going forward.

DEMOGRAPHIC CHANGE

We will only attain our ambitious goals in the future if we continue to succeed
in attracting committed and motivated employees who are creative, flexible
and value-oriented. At the same time, many parts of the world where our
production activities take place are affected by demographic change. While
this megatrend spells added growth in demand for healthcare — and hence
for our products — in terms of human resources, we face the challenge of
maintaining and sharpening the Gerresheimer Group’s competitive edge
under shifting demographic conditions. Our European plants are affected
by demographic change in the workforce to an especially large degree. The
average age of our employees in Europe is over 43.0 years. \We expect that
this figure will continue to rise in the years ahead. Accordingly, we implement
various programs to address demographic challenges. These include adapting
workplaces to the needs of older workers and health management to help
maintain productivity. Additionally, we have paved the way for inspiring
even more skilled young people to join the Company in future years. We
are stepping up our staff and talent recruitment activities and positioning
ourselves as an attractive employer worldwide. One important figure for us
is the high average length of service across our workforce, which stands at
11.7 years. Multiple factors confirm that we are on the right track.

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH MANAGEMENT

The health and safety of our employees are paramount to us. Many fields of
activity within the Gerresheimer Group are physically demanding. This makes
it all the more important for us to invest in the health and productivity of our
employees. We take measures to prevent occupational accidents and health
problems that can arise in day-to-day activities or are workflow-related. As
part of this, we offer our employees a range of prevention courses such
as back school, fitness courses, company sports, dietary and ergonomics
advice, and stress-management training. This is how we aim to ensure that
employees stay physically and mentally fit for their entire working lives and
beyond. We will continue to do our utmost to prevent occupational accidents.
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EMPLOYEE SURVEY

Following the last survey in 2012, we conducted the latest in our regular
series of global employee surveys in spring 2015. We carry out a survey of
this kind every three years as a regular gauge of progress in our action plans
as well as to obtain meaningful feedback from employees on questions of
corporate culture and working conditions, along with ideas and suggestions
for improvement. A particularly important aspect of this for us is to sound out
employee commitment and how employees view the leadership performance
of our managerial staff. This survey of trends and developments delivers
findings that we can respond to and that help us in our human resources
work to actively make adjustments where necessary, deliver added impetus
and avert undesirable developments. Some 67.6% of our workforce took
part in the 2015 employee survey. The majority of topics covered continued
to show positive trends. A number of issues were nonetheless pinpointed in
the survey, and we will be paying extra attention to these in the future. They
include stress and workloads, corporate culture, change process management
and leadership. Initiatives and measures to address these factors and take
the necessary action have been — and continue to be — devised at every
location the world over.

VALUES-DRIVEN HR DEVELOPMENT

Our corporate culture is shaped by actively living and breathing Gerresheimer’s
values on a daily basis. These are central to our culture, providing a guiding
frame of reference for our day-to-day working relationships. By creating a
common understanding, they give direction and secure the lasting success of
our Company. Our global executive training activities for the first two levels
of management are based on our values. Our modular training program,
“Leadership Powered by Values”, places the emphasis on a different value
each year. The focus in 2015 was on responsibility. Within the module, our
management staff collaborated on improvements for the benefit of the
Company. Based on propositions developed from the outcomes of past events
as well as the employee survey findings, specific issues were discussed and
ideas for improvement derived from them. In all, “Leadership Powered by
Values” was staged seven times with a total of 69 managers in 2015. We
also continue to offer our worldwide “Leading White” and “Leading Blue”
training programs for middle management in commercial, administrative and
operational functions — with great success. Our employee survey in March
demonstrated that our programs are the right way to go, and the assessment
of middle management leadership performance has significantly improved
relative to the prior survey. In the financial year 2015, we held 15 leadership
training sessions for middle management (seven “Leading White” and eight
“Leading Blue"), in which a total of 190 managers participated. Alongside
management development, we naturally also invest in employee training. A
well-trained, productive workforce is paramount in enabling us to leverage
and further hone our competitive edge. To this end, we aim to promote
our employees’ successful professional and personal development in order
to enhance their individual skills and capabilities. We have also stepped up
our training activities for sales employees. For instance, the financial year
2015 saw the successful continuation of our Sales Academy first launched
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in 2014. Training is offered to all global sales staff. The objective of the
Sales Academy is to forge stronger links between our sales employees and
selectively work on specific issues geared to boosting our sales performance.
Focus areas so far have included negotiating skills, self-confident demeanor,
international and cross-cultural selling, and compelling presentation skills.
Following initial successes and the positive response from all participants,
we will continue to pursue this approach in future years.

APPRENTICESHIPS

We are happy to deliver on our social responsibility as an employer and invest
in training young people. Our comprehensive apprenticeship programs and
high take-on rate at the end of training set us apart as a training enterprise.
These programs systematically prepare our young employees for their future
tasks. Moreover, we offer a very wide range of training occupations on both
the operational and the commercial side, as well as dual degree courses.

Financial year 2015 saw us provide apprenticeships in more than 20 training
occupations, together with courses integrated with degree studies where
students alternate between a university of cooperative education (UCE) and
one of the Gerresheimer plants. We primarily offer this form of training in
engineering sciences. The UCEs teach students the theory while we see to
their practical training. Many of our trainees and students attain outstand-
ing examination results. Our trainees frequently top local rankings and
win awards from the relevant chamber of industry and commerce. As of
November 30, 2015, the Gerresheimer Group had 262 (2014: 275) trainees,
including 202 (2014: 212) in Germany. This put our apprenticeship quota in
Germany at 5.8% (2014: 6.2%), well above that for the glass-processing
industry as a whole (average: 4.8%). In addition, we give young people an
early insight into our business by awarding challenging internships to school
and university students.

ONE GERRESHEIMER WEEK

To promote a sense of community across all divisions, countries and depart-
ments, the Gerresheimer Group’s entire workforce organized the first ever
ONE Gerresheimer Week in June 2015. At all plants, the event was held
under this year’s banner of “responsibility” as one of our five core values.
Each location was invited to stage events and activities of its own choosing
during the week, including events that had already been planned. Ideally,
the program was to feature at least one charity initiative in line with the
responsibility theme. The proceeds were subsequently donated to a self-
selected charity project. A range of initiatives were staged, including health
workshops informing employees about healthy nutrition, healthy lifestyles
and reducing work-related stress, blood donation drives, voluntary service
in retirement homes, and tree planting.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

We aim to become the leading global partner for enabling solutions that
improve health and well-being. At the same time, our customers’ require-
ments are changing: Innovation and quality are increasingly critical factors
in the market. This makes issues such as rising quality standards as well
as innovative products and solutions integral to our growth strategy. We
continue to invest on an ongoing basis both in enhancing production and
product quality as well as in fine-tuning our product portfolio. This entails
close collaboration with our customers as well as with our partners in industry,
in the scientific community and at other institutions.

We manufacture specialized products that come into direct contact with
pharmaceuticals and are therefore particularly relevant for the pharma
industry. They are subject to extremely strict requirements imposed by the
national and international licensing authorities, particularly with regard to
manufacturing processes and product quality. Through our cutting-edge
technology and innovative resourcefulness, we have established a top-ranking
position, which we intend to strengthen further.

CUSTOMERS BEAR MAJORITY OF R&D COST

In the past financial year, a total of EUR 1.8m (2014: EUR 1.5m) was spent
on research and development. A further EUR 0.9m of development costs
were capitalized in 2015 (2014: EUR 1.8m).

Closely aligned with our customers' needs, our research and development
activities are often carried out in close harness with them. In some cases,
staff from pharmaceuticals companies work with us at our Competence
Centers. Research and development activities are exclusively carried out by
Gerresheimer AG's subsidiaries. The costs associated with these customer-spe-
cific research and development projects are largely borne by our customers.

QUALITY IMPROVEMENT

When developing new products and solutions, we aim to not only expand
our product range but also achieve continuous improvement. This objective
is founded on ongoing quality optimization. We are aware that quality
standards cannot be high enough when it comes to safely administering
human medication and protecting human health. The core focus of our
activities is enhancing technologies and processes in order to prevent defects
from occurring in the first place.

The increasing use of clean-room technology is another key development in
quality enhancement. Moreover, our pharmaceutical customers’ requirements
for the manufacture of pharmaceutical primary packaging are becoming
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more and more exacting. They demand ever-greater precision, so tolerance
limits are shrinking. We respond to this trend by continually raising the
bar for our production systems. The findings of a joint multi-year study of
the delamination propensity of glass (detachment of glass particles) were
incorporated into an improved production process for primary packaging
such as glass injection vials. This led to a decrease in the propensity of these
products to delaminate. We are also working on an improved production
process to prevent cracks and scratches in glass containers, and thus to
greatly increase the break resistance of primary packaging made of glass.

In addition to optimizing production processes, our efforts in the area of
continual, seamless product quality control are tireless. To this end, we
fine-tune our product inspection systems, and only approve products for
dispatch if they satisfy our stringent quality standards. Gx® Tekion™, a
technology we developed ourselves, reduces by around 99% the number of
particles released when cutting glass tubes. The Gx® G3 inspection system
for prefillable syringes allows all parts of a syringe barrel to be inspected with
high-resolution cameras. At the same time, the Gx® G3 technology makes
it possible to measure injection vials during the glass blow-molding process.

DEVELOPMENT OF SYRINGES AND INJECTION VIALS

FOR SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

Fine-tuning our ready-to-fill, sterile glass syringes is one of our most im-
portant activities. “Ready-to-fill” means that the syringes can be filled with
medication directly. Once they are subsequently sealed, they are ready to
use. The Development and Production Center for Gx RTF® (Ready-to-Fill)
sterile glass syringe systems is located at our production facility in Buende,
Germany. Our product development activities additionally extend to practical
accessories that serve to improve injection safety. A new generation of the
production process was installed on the new fourth Gx RTF® production
line. It meets the ultimate in quality requirements. Among other benefits,
this contributed to a significant reduction in particles and scratches because
the production process avoids glass-on-glass contact. The washing process
meets top standards, and the various control mechanisms implemented after
each production step guarantee optimum quality even while the production
process is underway.

In cooperation with a partner, we also offer an innovative drug delivery
system made from a special plastic with properties similar to glass called
COP (Cyclo Olefin Polymer), which is marketed under the name ClearJect™.
As traditional glass syringes are not always appropriate for sensitive phar-
maceutical or biopharmaceutical drugs, developers are on the lookout for
suitable alternatives. The ClearJect™ syringes were developed specifically for
these kinds of applications. They expand the existing range of application
possibilities for ready-to-fill syringes.
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Our MultiShell® plastic vials for packaging highly sensitive liquid medication
are another example of our innovative strength. These novel plastic vials
are available in various sizes as ready-to-use and ready-to-sterilize products.

In connection with the sale of the glass tubing business, we entered into a
10-year supply contract with Corning for borosilicate glass tubes to ensure
that our requirements are met over the long term. Corning is ideally placed
to continue producing and developing superior-quality pharmaceutical glass
tubes into the future. We have also set up a joint venture with Corning to
accelerate innovation for the pharmaceutical glass packaging market.

CUSTOMIZED DEVELOPMENTS FOR PHARMA AND
COSMETICS APPLICATIONS

For many years now, the Plastics & Devices Division has operated two Technical
Competence Centers (TCC) dedicated to designing and developing custom-
ized medical plastic products — one in Wackersdorf, Germany, and one in
Peachtree City, USA. A third competence center was opened in Dongguan,
China, in October 2014. In the TCC, our product development activities
focus on the practical use of systems and components for pharmaceutical,
diagnostic and medical technology applications.

In the past, we increasingly built up our design and development expertise,
especially in the Plastics & Devices Division. This has given rise to an ongoing
stream of new projects and the creation of innovative product ideas. We are,
for example, researching the development of plastic adaptors, designed to
substantially improve the break resistance and hence the performance of glass
syringes used in autoinjectors. Also known as emergency pens, autoinjectors
are used, for instance, to enable allergy sufferers to inject drugs quickly and
safely in an emergency. We also work with our customers in developing
complete autoinjector systems that we subsequently manufacture to order.

Pharmaceutical and medical technology products have to undergo a drawn-
out approval process before the idea can proceed to series production. This
process requires multiple small batches to be manufactured as clinical samples
or stability batches. To meet this need, we have set up a separate small-batch
production line in our competence center in Wackersdorf, Germany. It is
tailor-made for these customer requirements, for instance, in the clinical
phases prior to approval of a new drug. This is where we manufacture small
batches in series quality and then later directly incorporate the knowledge
gained from this process into large-scale series production. We are therefore
able to quickly and easily manufacture a product at any stage of the project,
regardless of whether it is for manufacturing development prototypes, clinical
samples or products in small batches for special applications.
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In developing and producing cosmetic glass for perfume flacons or cream
jars, we also place the highest demands on our processes and product qual-
ity. Our packaging for cosmetics is valued accordingly. We produce these
products mainly at our moulded glass plants in Tettau, Germany, and in
Momignies, Belgium. In the past financial year, we developed some 100 new
glass packaging products for the cosmetics industry. At the same time, we
produce several hundred variants of these different types of glass cosmetic
packaging, in some cases applying elaborate finishing technologies such as
spray coating and metallization.

PROCUREMENT

In the past financial year, the Gerresheimer Group’s total cost of materials
(including raw materials, consumables and supplies, energy costs, packaging
materials and purchased services) was EUR 490.5m (2014: EUR 473.0m).
The procurement rate — the cost of procuring materials as a percentage of
revenues — thus stood at 35.6%, slightly below the prior-year rate of 36.7%.
Reflecting the differing focus of activities between our three divisions, our
procurement activities are largely organized on a decentralized basis. Energy
and goods or services not relevant to production, such as advisory services,
data networks as well as hardware and software, are mostly sourced centrally.

Our interactions with suppliers are governed by the Gerresheimer Compliance
Program as well as by purchasing policies and procedural guidelines. It is also
extremely important for us that our suppliers comply with the high quality
requirements of our business. This is why we prefer to work with suppliers
certified in accordance with the relevant ISO standards who also comply with
the official guidelines on quality assurance in the production of drugs and
active ingredients (good manufacturing practice, or GMP). We ensure that
our suppliers adhere to the Gerresheimer Principles for Responsible Supply
Chain Management (available on our website at: www.gerresheimer.com/
en/investor-relations/corporate-responsibility/customers-suppliers.html), which
include key precepts on environmental protection, occupational health and
ethical business conduct. In order to ensure that suppliers continue to meet
these criteria, we carry out regular supplier audits.

As a manufacturer of high-quality pharmaceutical primary packaging, we
mainly use quartz sand and soda lime as raw materials to make glass, along
with various additives in relatively small quantities. These basic products
are freely available and we procure them from a range of suppliers. There
were consequently no disruptions to supply or shortages with a significant
impact on our business development in the reporting period. Moreover, glass
production requires energy — primarily electricity and gas. Some customer
contracts provide for automatic adjustment after a specific time when energy
prices change. Since contracts in the glass segment rarely carry an agreed term
of more than two years, adjustments for any changes in energy prices are
generally made where necessary when agreements are extended. We minimize
any residual risks as far as possible using hedges (see under “Financial risks").
In line with our corporate strategy of focusing on packaging solutions for
pharma customers, we have sold our glass tubing business to Corning. Glass
tubes are merely an intermediary product that Gerresheimer uses primarily for
subsequent processing at its own plants to produce injection vials, ampoules,
cartridges and glass syringes. At the same time, we entered into a ten-year
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supply contract with Corning for borosilicate glass tubes to ensure that
Gerresheimer's requirements are met over the long term. With its expertise
in glass, materials research and materials innovation, Corning is ideally placed
to continue producing and developing superior-quality pharmaceutical glass
tubes into the future. We have also set up a joint venture with Corning
to accelerate innovation for the pharmaceutical glass packaging market.
Gerresheimer’s requirements in terms of this intermediary product are thus
met for the long term, making our glass business substantially less capital
intensive while reducing procurement effort and risk.

The production of plastic pharmaceutical primary packaging — especially
for complex drug delivery systems like insulin pens and inhalers — mainly
requires specialist plastic granules and energy. These basic products are also
freely available and procured from a range of suppliers. Here, too, there were
consequently no disruptions to supply or shortages with a significant impact
on our business development in the reporting period. Given that contracts
for the production of drug delivery systems generally have multiple-year
terms, they usually include provision for adjustments after a specific time
when granule and energy prices change, so as to minimize the risk of price
changes in the named basic products.

PRODUCTION

The same exceptionally high quality standards that apply to the production of
drugs also apply to the production of pharmaceutical primary packaging. Our
in-house experts, our customers, external appraisers and supervisory bodies
regularly verify our compliance with these standards, which are grouped
under the heading of good manufacturing practice (GMP). Whatever form
the production processes in the three divisions take, the principles of the
Gerresheimer Management System (GMS — see under “Business Excellence”)
apply at every Gerresheimer plant worldwide. This is how we ensure that
management systems and quality standards are uniform.

Each division’s production capacities are generally planned centrally based on
the order situation, delivery deadlines and regulatory issues, and distributed
among the plants in each division at a regional or global level in line with the
orders on hand. Efficiency and optimum capacity utilization are instrumental
here. Notably in the Primary Packaging Glass Division, high capacity utilization
is crucial to profitability because its production processes involve melting
various raw materials into glass in energy-intensive furnaces. Another key
profitability factor is minimizing idle time. Set-up times indicate how much
time is required to retool for the next product to be manufactured. In the
last few years — notably in our Primary Packaging Glass Division — we have
continuously improved in terms of optimizing the capacity utilization of our
furnaces and reducing set-up times. This represents a key competitive factor
considering the large number of different products made in this division.
In addition, through the sale of our glass tubing business to Corning in the
financial year 2015 and the permanent closure of our moulded glass plant
in Millville in the third quarter of 2015, we have significantly reduced the
capital intensity of our business while retaining our extensive product range.



GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT
» Non-Financial Success Factors of the Gerresheimer Group

Security of supply and delivery reliability are critical factors for the pharma
industry. Accordingly, we use standardized — or at least comparable — tech-
nologies at all plants worldwide and consistently apply the GMS. This has the
advantage that many of our products can be produced at another site if local
production bottlenecks arise. As a result, our customers enjoy significantly
enhanced security of supply — and it gives us a critical competitive edge.

QUALITY INITIATIVE AND GLOBAL CERTIFICATION

Excellent quality across all products and production facilities is not just one of
our most important goals. It is also a key supplier selection criterion for our
customers. The Group-wide quality initiative launched in 2011 has led to the
development, testing and implementation of binding quality requirements
and key performance indicators (KPIs) for all plants and divisions. These KPIs
measure critical quality parameters such as product quality, consignment
quantity and specification compliance, complaint metrics, quality failure
costs, customer audit feedback and improvement plans. Drawing on the
KPIs, we continuously monitor both our production facilities and the quality
of production. This considerably shortens our reaction times to any deviation
from self-imposed targets. The monitoring and measurement of internal
KPIs is supplemented by our regular global customer satisfaction surveys,
which are outlined in greater detail under “Business Excellence”. We are
committed to delivering consistently high quality to customers, regardless of
production location or product. Above and beyond our global quality targets,
we also develop additional, tailored quality agreements with our customers.

Certification serves as objective proof that our production operations and
processes conform to specific criteria and standards. In numerous respects,
we measure up to and, in some cases, exceed market requirements. All of our
production facilities have ISO 9001 quality management systems certification.
In addition, 16 plants are certified to ISO 15378 as meeting the special
requirements for the manufacture of pharmaceutical primary packaging
materials. Eleven plants have succeeded in gaining ISO 13485 certification,
which sets out the requirements for a comprehensive management system
for the design and manufacture of medicinal products. Thirteen also have
ISO 14001 certification for their environmental management systems. More-
over, three of our German moulded glass plants have obtained ISO 50001
certification for their state-of-the-art energy management systems. Likewise,
our Buende, Pfreimd, Wackersdorf, Regensburg and Muenster plants and
locations have met the requirements for this standard since the financial year
2014 (see under “Environment”). The plant in Pfreimd, Germany, additionally
has a manufacturing license in accordance with the German Medicines Act
for pharmaceutical secondary packaging in large-scale production and for
the production of clinical sample specimens. Another example is the appli-
cation of the exacting GMP rules for pharmaceutics to cosmetic packaging
(ISO 22716) at our plant in Tettau, Germany.
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SUSTAINABILITY AND CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Corporate responsibility is firmly rooted in our corporate philosophy. The
principles of sustainability and corporate responsibility are integral to our
vision, our mission statement and our five values of integrity, responsibility,
excellence, teamwork and innovation. At all our sites around the world,
we work and act in accordance with those principles. Further informa-
tion about our vision, mission and values is provided on our website at
www.gerresheimer.com/en/company/vision-mission-values.

Sustainability is important to us, in every sense of the word. Our main
focus is on our products and the benefits they provide. By developing and
manufacturing products for the sustainable packaging of drugs as well
as their simple and safe dosage and administration, we make a valuable
contribution to the health and well-being of society. Responsible develop-
ment and production processes are therefore a high priority. Continuous
improvement of our quality standards, conservation of natural resources,
avoidance of waste and the manufacture of products that are easy to use
and deliver maximum safety are among our key drivers.

Our corporate responsibility and commitment to sustainability, however, go
far beyond our products and their ongoing development. This is reflected
in our adopted corporate responsibility principles. These describe our cor-
porate responsibility toward society, our workforce, investors, customers
and suppliers, and the environment. We are happy to be publicly measured
against these principles.

Our approach to corporate responsibility and sustainability takes in environ-
mental, social and economic aspects. As well as complying with statutory
requirements as a matter of course, we also set and continuously refine our
own standards. Our sustainability principles are enshrined in the GMS and
provide guidance for production, purchasing and improvement processes
at all locations worldwide. Further information is provided under “Business
Excellence”. Employees at our production facilities also embrace responsi-
bility at regional level by regularly taking part in local projects — notably to
promote education and training as well as a wide variety of social projects
at local level. A case in point is the creation of dual apprenticeship and study
programs at our Czech plant in Horsovsky Tyn. These have earned multiple
awards. In Tettau, Germany, we are involved in a regional intergenerational
project. Our Medical Systems Business Unit supports the University of Applied
Sciences Amberg-Weiden in many ways — among other things with an
endowed chair — and collaborates with the university on a joint in-company
training and degree program in medical engineering. In summer 2015, a
ONE Gerresheimer Week took place in many of the Gerresheimer plants.
Staff organized a diverse range of activities that included collecting for and
supporting local charities. A research project from students in the context
of the initiative ‘Jugend forscht’ on the subject of intelligent glass coating
was supported by our Essen plant in Germany last year.
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In addition, we measure and monitor emissions at all plants across the globe
as part of the Carbon Disclosure Project. We implement numerous projects
at our plants targeting environment-friendly production and responsible
resource use. Further information is provided under “Environment”. We
involve our suppliers and partners in these projects and initiatives and ob-

. tain undertakings from them to comply with our responsible purchasing
management policy. We foster a culture of continuous improvement in
sustainability and corporate social responsibility. This is also something that
is expected by our customers and the capital markets. In this regard, our
individual plants and the Gerresheimer Group as a whole are successfully
audited on a regular basis.

Further information about corporate responsibility and sustainability at
Gerresheimer, as well as about our principles of responsible supply chain
management, is provided on our website at www.gerresheimer.com/en/
company/corporate-responsibility.

COMPLIANCE

It is vital to the success of the Gerresheimer Group that all of the Group’s
companies are managed in accordance with ethical business principles,
responsibly and in compliance with the law and the rules of fair competition.
Gerresheimer’s Compliance Program is intended to support our employees in
correctly applying laws and company guidelines and to protect them against
infringements. An important instrument in this connection comprises the
Group guidelines and instructions, which specify minimum standards of
conduct for all Group employees. The Gerresheimer Compliance Program
focuses on anti-corruption prevention, cartel law and capital market law.
Further information is provided on our website at www.gerresheimer.com/
en/company/compliance.

Training is an integral part of our compliance system, in order to improve gen-
eral awareness of compliance and encourage employees to put compliance
rules into practice. We offer regular classroom-based introductory training
worldwide. In addition, we provide web-based e-learning modules on key
compliance topics for selected employees who are required to complete
the modules — if they wish, in the workplace as an integral part of their
working routine.

While implementing compliance guidelines and organizing preventive train-
ing courses are important, what ultimately matters is whether employees
are following regulatory rules and reporting violations, and whether the
Company is imposing consequences. This is why we offer a web-based
whistleblower system as an aid to investigating compliance violations. The
system ensures anonymity for whistleblowers, regardless of whether they
are employees, customers, suppliers or third parties. To make it as easy as
possible to use, the whistleblower system is available on the Internet in all
languages relevant to us.
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ENVIRONMENT

Responsible use of natural resources, protecting the environment as well as
avoiding emissions and waste are core elements of our corporate respon-
sibility. Our approach to sustainability takes in economic, social and above
all environmental aspects. As a manufacturing enterprise, we have a special
responsibility toward the environment. Our environmental initiatives often
surpass the statutory requirements in the countries where we operate.
Green production, waste and emissions reduction and the sustainable use of
resources are implemented in our global Gerresheimer Management System
(GMS) as well as being reflected in our corporate responsibility principles
and our principles for responsible supply chain management.

Due to the substantial variation in production processes in our different
business units, local managers are responsible for ensuring the sustainable
use of resources at their own locations. The production plants regularly
exchange information so that they can learn from each other and have
the opportunity to adopt and adapt effective measures. We introduce new
initiatives on an ongoing basis to enable us to continuously improve in the
areas of environmental protection and resource conservation. The majority
of environmental improvements also bring long-term economic advantages.

Certification of our production plants is hugely important as a means of
documenting and verifying our environmental progress to customers and
the general public. So far, 13 of our major production locations have been
certified for state-of-the-art environmental management in accordance with
ISO 14001. We also attach great importance to implementing advanced
energy management systems, especially in our energy-intensive moulded
glass plants. Each of our German moulded glass plants in Essen, Tettau and
Lohr has either been recertified under, or has successfully passed regular
review for compliance with, the latest ISO 50001 standard for energy man-
agement systems. In the Medical Systems Business Unit, each of our German
locations in Pfreimd, Buende, Wackersdorf, Regensburg and Muenster has
been successfully certified or requalified in accordance with I1SO 50001.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION IN PRODUCTION

For us at Gerresheimer, environmental protection goes hand in hand with
energy efficiency. We therefore regularly overhaul and repair the Group’s
energy-intensive equipment, such as the furnaces in our moulded glass
plants. This allows us to install cutting-edge glass-melting technology and
modernize other production systems. As a result, we consistently achieve
improvements in energy efficiency through minor or major furnace repairs.
A comprehensive overhaul in late summer 2015 using the latest furnace
technology substantially reduced energy consumption and CO, emissions
per ton of glass melted at our plant in Chicago Heights, USA. The new glass
moulding machinery and the new stress-relieving furnaces are likewise more
energy-efficient. New compressed-air systems conserve resources as well.
Similarly, energy efficiency and resource conservation were aspects covered
in the 2015 furnace overhaul at the moulded glass plant in Momignies,
Belgium. The same applies for the furnace overhauls planned for 2016. In
addition, regional and industry organizations play an ever more important
part in energy efficiency and environmental protection issues. The moulded
glass plant in Essen, for example, is a member of the Ecoprofit platform.
This is a collaborative project between local authorities and local business
with the aim of reducing operating costs while conserving natural resources
— notably energy and water. The Federal Association of the German Glass
Industry (BV Glas), of which we are a member, has joined a German govern-
ment initiative to create energy efficiency networks and established its
first cross-sectoral energy efficiency network in the Frankenwald region in
August 2015. Our cosmetic glass plant in Tettau is a member of the network
comprising nearly 15 companies from a variety of industries in the region.

We also use renewable energy to meet our plants’ energy requirements. In
November 2015, our plant in Kundli, India, started operating a new solar
power installation to meet part of its local production energy needs. We
commissioned one of the biggest photovoltaic systems in the USA at our
plant in Vineland in summer 2012. Installed on the roof of our US glass
tubing plant, the 44,000 m? photovoltaic system covers an area around
the size of seven soccer pitches. This enabled us to substantially reduce
CO, emissions from the plant. The Vineland glass tubing plant was sold
to Corning in November 2015, and with it the rights associated with the
photovoltaic installation, which is operated by a third party. In connection
with the sale of the glass tubing business, we signed a ten-year supply
contract with Corning for borosilicate glass tubes to meet Gerresheimer’s
requirements over the long term. This means we continue to source glass
tubes made using solar power at the Vineland plant.
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The first combined heat and power (CHP) plant has been in operation at
our production location in Buende, Germany, since the fall of 2014. This
serves to reduce both primary energy consumption and CO, emissions.
The CHP plant is a cogeneration system producing electricity and heat on
a decentralized basis. Waste heat generated by machinery is an important
focus at several plants. At our Pfreimd plant in Germany, for instance, waste
heat from machinery has been put into use since last year to de-ice the
loading ramp. Energy efficiency was improved at all locations in the Medical
Systems Business Unit in 2015. All coolants there were also substituted for
state-of-the-art coolants that meet the latest standards. Energy use for
lighting is a key factor at many locations. In a large number of plants, old
lamps have been replaced with energy-saving LED technology.

In the Plastic Packaging Business Unit, we are currently developing a broad
product portfolio of drug and cosmetics packaging made using renewable
resources instead of polyethylene (PET).

CARBON DISCLOSURE PROJECT

We regularly publish the goals, strategies and outcomes of environmental
protection initiatives and activities in connection with our participation in
the Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP). This is the world’s biggest initiative
to reduce carbon emissions. For seven years now, we have been actively
involved in the CDP. We measure, analyze and manage our CO, emissions
at all production locations, and report annually on their composition and
any changes that have occurred as well as various measures adopted to
reduce CO, emissions. The data for the financial year 2014 was collected
internationally using standardized methods in spring 2015 and published
by the CDP in fall 2015.

Our environment strategy target is to reduce the ratio of emissions to rev-
enues. This means that our revenues are to grow faster in the future than
the unavoidable carbon emissions produced in revenue generation. \We met
our target once again in the financial year 2014: The ratio of CO, emissions
to revenues fell by 19.3% between 2013 and 2014, marking the largest
percentage improvement since we began participating in the CDP. The
multi-year comparison also shows a positive trend.
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Our results at a glance:

Carbon Disclosure Project 2008-2014
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2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
CO, total emissions in tons 760,076 716,702 733,576 775,372 825,235 817,097 672,624
Revenues in EUR k 1,060,130 1,000,227 1,024,804 1,094,681 1,219,068 1,265,931 1,290,016
CO, emissions in relation to
revenues (t/EUR k) 0.717 0.717 0.716 0.708 0.677 0.645 0.521

Improved ratio of emissions to revenues
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Alongside our own target, we have also launched further improvements
within the context of CDP. For instance, we have improved the CDP verifica-
tion criterion. Our activities and data were checked by the TUV inspectorate
and certified to ISO 14064-3. A key indicator is the disclosure score. Climate
disclosure scoring measures reporting comprehensiveness. The maximum
possible score is 100. Our score for 2014 was 84, up from 81 for 2013.
Compared with other MDAX-listed German companies covered by CDP, we
moved up to eighth place. In the healthcare sector analysis, we improved
to fifth place.

The overall aim is for investors and customers to be able to assess, based
on wide-ranging data and indices, whether a company gives sufficient
consideration to climate change issues in its decisions and structures.

Further information and definitions are available at www.gerresheimer.com/
en/investor-relations/corporate-responsibility/carbon-disclosure-project and
www.cdproject.net.

Our corporate responsibility principles and principles for responsible supply
chain management are published on the Internet at www.gerresheimer.com/
en/company/corporate-responsibility.

BUSINESS EXCELLENCE

In our vision, we have set our sights on becoming the leading global partner to
our customers. The GMS represents one of the paths to attaining that vision.
Now in operation for more than ten years, it unites our approaches for contin-
uous improvement, lean production, quality focus and customer orientation in
a uniform Group-wide framework tailored to our business. The GMS has been
used to set Group-wide standards as well as to define methods and tools for
continuous process improvement at every link in the value chain. We aim to
continually raise standards for our customers with regard to quality, service and
costs, to boost the efficiency of our operational structures and processes, and
hence open the way for ongoing improvement in all business areas.

The methods and tools provided by the GMS are implemented by our employ-
ees. They learn how to apply the GMS principles through systematic training.
This enables them to boost efficiency for our customers as well as ensure the
consistently high quality of our products and services throughout the Group.
The success of the GMS is based on its acceptance, universal adoption and
implementation at all organizational levels throughout the Group.
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We develop and define plant-specific plans for improvement as part of the
operational and strategic planning process. Drawing on operational excellence
indicators and a standardized evaluation system, we regularly measure and
verify whether we have met our goals and complied with the GMS-defined
standards. For this purpose, over 200 employees have been trained as auditors
to ensure that the system is implemented long-term. These Company-trained
auditors are linked up in a network and provide an outstanding basis for
sharing solutions between plants and divisions as well as for intra-Group expert
consultation. Based on their evaluations, recommendations and action plans
are developed for each location to ensure ongoing, selective improvement.

More than 80 participants from 15 countries came to the 2015 annual GMS
conference to discuss recent developments in GMS in presentations, workshops
and plant visits, set up and expand networks as well as exchange experience
and successes in implementation. To mark the fifth staging of the GMS Awards,
the Management Board singled out four project teams and one plant for
recognition of their excellent implementation projects. As a way of further
boosting exchange between GMS experts throughout the year, we launched
a quarterly web conference in 2015, where experts present successful projects
in their plants and discuss current focuses and issues.

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEYS

Continuously enhancing our processes and workflows is also the focus of our
global customer satisfaction surveys, which we conduct regularly with the
help of a major market research institute. Our aim in this is to gain a more
in-depth understanding of customer needs in relation to customer satisfaction
and customer loyalty. This is done using a standardized customer survey,
which is available in ten different languages. Insights gained are leveraged
to improve customer service and derive specific recommendations for process
optimization.

The survey is conducted Group-wide, covering our operating companies and
their customers from Argentina, Brazil, Mexico and the USA, through to the
European plants and our locations in China and India. In particular, the survey
focuses on our development work, the product portfolio, customer-specific
system solutions, order processing and logistics, the expertise and dedication
of our sales staff as well as our technical support and complaints handling.
Our customers' responses highlight focal areas that are especially important
to them — both where they are already happy with our performance and
where we need to improve.

The survey findings provide us with a wealth of ideas for potential improve-
ments. We explain and discuss the results with experts in numerous different
forums and at all levels. Based on the findings, expert teams in all divisions
develop action plans that are implemented step by step.
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By conducting our Group-wide, global customer satisfaction surveys on a
regular basis, we also comply with the requirements of the ISO audits and
our own guidelines under the GMS. Over the years, the surveys additionally
allow us to track whether improvements made from one survey to the next
were successful and whether they made a difference for customers. This lets
us constantly explore new ways to improve how we work with our customers
and raise customer satisfaction.

Between iterations of the Group-wide customer satisfaction survey, we addi-
tionally conduct regional and project-based customer surveys. These enable
us to respond rapidly to specific wishes and suggestions for improvement
on an issue-driven basis.

REMUNERATION REPORT

The Remuneration Report complies with the requirements of the German
Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch/HGB), the recommendations of the
German Corporate Governance Code (DCGK), German Accounting Stan-
dard 17 (GAS 17) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). A
new Management Board remuneration system was approved at the Annual
General Meeting on April 30, 2015. The changes were already effective
for Mr. Rohrhoff from the financial year 2014, take effect for Mr. Beaujean
in the financial year 2016 and are to apply in the future when extending
the contracts of existing Management Board members or appointing new
members to the Management Board. The changes are explained below.

MANAGEMENT BOARD REMUNERATION

STRUCTURE OF REMUNERATION

The total remuneration of active members of the Management Board
consists of several components. These are a fixed salary, a short-term per-
formance-based bonus, a component with a long-term incentive effect,
stock appreciation rights, customary fringe benefits and pension benefits.
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NON-PERFORMANCE-BASED REMUNERATION

The non-performance-based components are a fixed salary and non-cash
fringe benefits. The latter mainly consist of insurance premiums (including
group accident insurance and invalidity insurance) as well as the use of a
company car. There is also directors and officers liability (D&O) insurance
for members of the Management Board; this provides for a deductible in
accordance with section 93 (2) sentence 3 of the German Stock Corporation
Act (Aktiengesetz/AktG).

PERFORMANCE-BASED REMUNERATION

Short-term variable cash remuneration

The short-term variable remuneration is tied to attainment of annual targets
agreed in each member’s contract of employment; the target figures are
derived from a budget approved by the Supervisory Board.

Until now, these targets have related to four key performance indicators:
adjusted EBITDA, revenues, net working capital and total capital expenditure.
If all targets are met, the short-term variable cash remuneration is 50% of
the individual fixed salary. Limited to a maximum of 60% of the individual
fixed salary, the short-term variable cash remuneration is paid out in the
subsequent year following approval of the consolidated financial statements
by the Supervisory Board.

In the future, when extending the contracts of existing Management Board
members and appointing new Management Board members, the annual
bonus, as short-term variable cash remuneration, will be tied solely to attain-
ment of the three variously weighted financial KPIs adjusted EBITDA, revenues
and net working capital. The total capital expenditure target component is
no longer applicable. The net working capital target component has been
switched from binary target attainment/non-attainment to a 95%-105%
target corridor. If all target values are achieved, the annual bonus amounts
to 50% of the individual fixed salary. The annual bonus is capped at 70%
of the individual fixed salary.

Long-term variable cash remuneration

The component with a long-term incentive effect consists of a rolling bonus
system tied to attainment of specific targets over a three-year period. The
key performance indicators relevant to target attainment are organic revenue
growth and return on capital employed (ROCE).

Until now, target attainment has been measured against the arithmetic mean
of the annual figures in the three-year period. The bonus payable on target
attainment is 30% of the individual fixed salary. It is capped (on 133% target
attainment) at just under 40% of the individual fixed salary. Bonuses are paid
out three years after the base year.

In the future, when extending the contracts of existing Management Board
members and appointing new Management Board members, instead of being
defined with fixed values as before, the ROCE target corridor is now to be set
each year for the next three years based on the business plan. Bonuses are paid
out three years after the base year. The bonus payable on target attainment on
account of the sustainability component is 40% of the individual fixed salary.
The sustainability component is capped at 55% of the individual fixed salary.
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Long-term, share-price-based variable cash remuneration
(phantom stocks)

The Company has additionally agreed long-term share-price-based variable
remuneration with all members of the Management Board. Under the
agreements, members are granted a specific number of stock appreciation
rights (phantom stocks), according to the share price, for each year of
service on the Management Board. Each stock appreciation right entitles
the holder to a payment based on the change in the share price, subject to
a performance threshold: at the exercise date, the Company’s share price
must exceed the initial price for the relevant tranche by at least 12% or have
increased by a larger percentage than the MDAX. For stock appreciation
rights relating to 2015, the initial price is the EUR 51.89 issue price. The
performance threshold is relevant to vesting but not to determination of
the payment amount. Stock appreciation rights can be exercised during a
16-month exercise period following a four-year waiting period. The payment
amount is equal to the absolute increase in the share price between the issue
date of the stock appreciation rights and the exercise date. However, the
payment amount is capped at 25% of the initial price of all stock appreciation
rights in the same tranche. All unexercised stock appreciation rights expire
on departure of the holder, except in the event of death or permanent
incapacity or if the holder has not been a member of the Management
Board for at least one year of the term of each tranche. All entitlements to
future stock appreciation rights likewise expire on departure. The Company
reserves the right to settle stock appreciation rights with shares; however,
cash settlement is planned.

In the future, when extending the contracts of existing Management Board
members or appointing new Management Board members, a new agreement
providing for each Management Board member to receive a value-based
allocation will apply. Members of the Management Board are thus no longer
allocated a specific number of stock appreciation rights but are awarded
an entitlement (in a specific amount) to a payment in the event that the
exercise and payment conditions are met. After a vesting period of five
years, a Management Board member is entitled, within an ensuing period
of 24 months, to demand payment in the amount of the appreciation in the
stock market price of Gerresheimer stock between the issue date and the
exercise (maturity) date. Payment is conditional on the percentage apprecia-
tion being at least 20% or being greater than the percentage increase in the
MDAX over the maturity period and on at least one full year's membership
of the Management Board. The target-based remuneration is to be 40%
of the individual fixed salary for each member of the Management Board
on attainment of an exercise target comprising a 20% increase in the share
price. If the share price rises during the set period by 40% or more, the
entitlement awarded to the members of the Management Board is capped
at 80% of their individual fixed salary.
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Pension benefits

Pensions vested up to May 1, 2007 for the current members of the Man-
agement Board are administered through a pension fund. These pensions
are funded out of a once-only payment made in the financial year 2007.
They therefore incur no further ongoing payments. Pensions vesting since
May 1, 2007 are generally administered through a provident fund.

After leaving the Gerresheimer Group, the current members of the Man-
agement Board are normally eligible to receive pension benefits from age
65. The annual pension is between 1.5% and 2.2% of the final fixed salary,
depending on age on joining the pension plan. This percentage increases
with years of service as a member of the Management Board to a maximum
of 40%. Surviving dependants’ pensions are provided for at 60% of the
deceased’s pension for the spouse and 20% per child for any surviving
children. Surviving dependants’ pensions are limited in total to 100% of
the deceased’s pension.

On February 10, 2015, the Supervisory Board of Gerresheimer AG also
modified the pension system as an integral part of the new remuneration
system for newly appointed Management Board members. The company
pension arrangement for current Management Board members, compris-
ing 1.5%-2.2% defined benefit commitment per year of service up to a
maximum of 40% of the final salary at age 65, is to be replaced for new
Management Board members with a defined contribution scheme.

In future, the amount to be furnished by the Company for new Management
Board members’ pensions is to be determined as 20% of the fixed salary
plus 20% of the annual short-term bonus attained. New Management
Board members may choose from three options as to how this amount is
used: (1) 20% of the fixed salary paid into an insurance policy and 20%
of the bonus paid into an investment; (2) 20% of the fixed salary paid into
an insurance policy and 20% of the bonus paid out for personal pension
provision; (3) 20% of the fixed salary and 20% of the bonus paid out for
personal pension provision.

Under the insurance option, a Management Board member earns entitle-
ment on retirement to payment of an annuity-based old-age, invalidity or
surviving dependants’ pension against the insurance company. Alternatively,
a Management Board member can elect to have the accumulated capital
paid out on retirement. The pension entitlement then lapses.

In the capital-based option, the Company has a top-up obligation up to the
amount paid in on retirement (claim event) if the value of the investment falls,
as the Company must guarantee capital maintenance to ensure qualification
as a company pension arrangement. Any notional underfunding prior to
the claim event must therefore be accounted for — if only temporarily, as
appropriate.
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If a Management Board member has the scheduled annual contribution
amount paid out while still in service, as an additional salary component for
personal pension provision, the Company has no further obligation once
payment has been made.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits in the event of premature termination of a Management
Board member’s contract, other than for cause and premature termination as
a result of a change of control, are capped as recommended in the German
Corporate Governance Code. Severance payments, including fringe benefits,
in the event of termination of a Management Board member’s contract,
other than for cause, are therefore capped to a maximum of two years’
remuneration and do not compensate more than the remaining term of
the contract. The cap on termination benefits is determined with reference
to total remuneration for the past financial year. The Supervisory Board has
agreed with Mr. Rohrhoff a two-year post-employment non-compete clause,
which normally provides for compensation relative to Mr. Rohrhoff’s fixed
salary in the year preceding termination of his contract.

In the event of a change of control, Management Board members have a
once-only special right to terminate their contracts at six months’ notice
effective as of the end of the month and to resign as of the end of the notice
period. The special right of termination applies solely within three months of
a Management Board member gaining knowledge of the change of control
and only if, at the date notice is given, the contract has been in effect for
at least one year and has a remaining term of nine months or more. If a
Management Board member exercises his or her special right of termination,
the Company is required to pay termination benefit equal to three times the
annual remuneration less amounts paid during the notice period. Annual
remuneration is defined as the remuneration of the full financial year prior
to the notice of termination including variable remuneration components
and entitlements from the stock appreciation rights program.

The termination benefit arrangement that applies when extending the
contracts of existing Management Board members and appointing new
Management Board members has been modified so that any entitlements
from the stock appreciation rights program no longer increase the size of
the termination benefit entitlement.

MANAGEMENT BOARD REMUNERATION IN THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

The recommendations of the German Corporate Governance Code on the
determination of Management Board remuneration have been implemented.

Total remuneration of active Management Board members came to
EUR 8,213k in the financial year 2015 (2014: EUR 5,263k). This comprised
EUR 1,910k in non-performance-based remuneration (2014: EUR 1,910k)
and EUR 2,428k in performance-based remuneration (2014: EUR 2,142k).
Service cost for pensions in the financial year 2015 was EUR 614k (2014:
EUR 491k) and vested stock appreciation rights in the year under review
came to EUR 3,261k (2014: EUR 720k).
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Remuneration of individual Management Board members in the financial
year 2015 is presented in the tables below:

Uwe Rohrhoff Rainer Beaujean

CEO CFO Andreas Schitte

Primary Packaging Glass Life Science Research Plastics & Devices

Benefits granted 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
in EUR k 2015 min. max. 2014 2015 min. max. 2014 2015 min. max. 2014
Fixed remuneration 770 770 770 741 570 570 570 570 570 570 570 537
Non-cash remuneration 26 26 26 25 20 20 20 19 19 19 19 18
Total 796 796 796 766 590 590 590 589 589 589 589 555
Short-term variable remuneration 385 - 539 370 285 - 342 285 285 - 342 268
Long-term variable remuneration 308 - 424 296 171 - 1,596 171 171 - 228 161
Plan 2014-2017 - = = 296 - = = 171 - — = 161
Plan 2014-2018 308 - 424 - 171 - 228 - 171 - 228 -
Phantom stocks - - - - - - 1,368 - - - - -
Total 1,489 796 1,759 1,433 1,046 590 2,528 1,045 1,045 589 1,159 984
Service cost (IAS 19) 316 316 316 264 - s = = 298 298 298 227
Total remuneration 1,805 1,112 2,075 1,697 1,046 590 2,528 1,045 1,343 887 1,457 1,211

In the financial year 2015, Mr. Beaujean received new stock appreciation

rights (tranches 9 to 12) in connection with the extension of his employment

contract. The tranches are described in detail in the section “Long-term, share- $
price-based variable cash remuneration (phantom stocks)”. Given that it is ?. gg
essentially a value-based commitment, there is no fair value at the grant date.

Uwe Rohrhoff Rainer Beaujean
CEO CFO Andreas Schitte
Primary Packaging Glass Life Science Research Plastics & Devices
Allocation

in EUR k 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Fixed remuneration 770 741 570 570 570 537
Non-cash remuneration 26 25 20 19 19 18
Total 796 766 590 589 589 555
Short-term variable remuneration 315 275 247 218 235 187
Long-term variable remuneration 994 884 - - 637 578
Plan 2011-2014 - 259 - = - 172
Plan 2012-2015 259 - - - 188 -
Plan 2013-2016 - — - — - —
Phantom stocks 735 625 - - 449 406
Total 2,105 1,925 837 807 1,461 1,320
Service Cost (IAS 19) 316 264 - - 298 227

Total remuneration 2,421 2,189 837 807 1,759 1,547
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Long-term, share-price-based variable cash remuneration
The table on Management Board remuneration includes share-based payment
at fair value at the grant date.

In accordance with IFRS, total remuneration includes the fair value of the
benefit vested in the financial year. With a four-year vesting period, this
means that the fair value is recognized as expense over four years from the
grant date. Details of outstanding phantom stocks are provided below in
accordance with IFRS 2:

Phantom stocks share based IFRS:

Uwe Rohrhoff Rainer Andreas

(CEO) Beaujean Schitte

Portion of total 2015 1,221 736 879

expenses

in EUR k 2014 409 81 230

Fair value 2015 2,134 1,343 1,729

in EUR k 2014 1,684 397 1,238

Nulgalber 6f 2015 250,000 165,000 210,000

phantom stocks 2014 340,000 110,000 265,000
Phantom stocks value based IFRS:

Uwe Réhrhoff Rainer

(CEO) Beaujean

Portion of total expenses in EUR k 2015 335 90

Fair value in EUR k 2015 1,505 1,085

Pension benefits

The service cost for each member of the Management Board is given in the
Management Board remuneration table. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation must additionally be stated in accordance with IFRS. This
is shown in the table below:

Uwe Rohrhoff

in EUR k (CEO) Andreas Schiitte
Present value 2015 4,571 2,013
2014 4,105 1,643

Total compensation in accordance with IFRS is presented in the following table:

in EUR k 2015 2014
Fixed remuneration 1,910 1,848
Non-cash remuneration 65 62
Total short-term non-performance-

based remuneration 1,975 1,910
Short-term variable remuneration 797 680
Total short-term variable

remuneration 2,772 2,590
Long-term variable remuneration 1,631 1,462
Phantom stocks vested in the

financial year 2,836 720
Service cost of pension vested

in the financial year 614 491
Total long-term remuneration 5,081 2,673
Total 7,853 5,263
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REMUNERATION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

Supervisory Board remuneration is governed by Gerresheimer AG's Articles
of Association.

Supervisory Board members receive fixed annual remuneration of EUR 30,000.
The Chairman of the Supervisory Board is granted two and a half times and
the Deputy Chairman one and a half times this amount. The Chairman of the
Audit Committee receives an additional fixed remuneration of EUR 20,000
and further members of the Audit Committee each